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          2                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: We are waiting

          3  for the Chair of the Finance Committee. As you know,

          4  this is a joint hearing between the Education

          5  Committee and the Finance.

          6                 I am going to read my statement and

          7  by that time, I am in hopes just to turn it over to

          8  the Chair when he walks in.

          9                 Good morning, and welcome to the

         10  Education and Finance hearing on the Fiscal Year

         11  2000 Preliminary budget for the Board of Education.

         12                 The Committee has invited the Board

         13  to come before us today to share their outlook on

         14  the proposed budget and the affect it will have on

         15  our City.

         16                 Immediately following Board of

         17  Education testimony, the School Construction

         18  Authority will testify about capital issues.

         19                 As you may know, the Board of

         20  Education has proposed a 10.9 billion five-year

         21  capital plan. This Committee will carefully review

         22  any revised capital plan to assess its impact on the

         23  facilities in which our children are educated.

         24                 For this reason, I am asking that

         25  someone from the Board of Education remain for the
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          2  SCA portion of the hearing.

          3                 The information this Committee has on

          4  the Board of Education's budget for Fiscal Year 2000

          5  is inspiring. The proposed budget for the Board

          6  increases City funding of instructional initiative

          7  by 131 million.

          8                 To make conditions even more

          9  favorable, it is comforting to know that the Board

         10  of Education had not been assigned a pegged program

         11  for Fiscal Year 2000. This means no new cuts to the

         12  classroom and programmed services and added

         13  opportunities to enhance service to our children.

         14  Thankfully so, there appear to be an overwhelming

         15  amount of support for our school system.

         16                 City dollars have been committed to

         17  fund important initiatives by our children in

         18  reading, arts, technology and bilingual and special

         19  education reforms. At budget adoption for Fiscal

         20  Year 1999, the City Council secured funds for after

         21  school programs. As a result, the City was able to

         22  leverage additional private dollars for this

         23  initiative.

         24                 The Board itself shared in fiscal

         25  responsibilities of strengthening after school
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          2  programs, as well as other instructional

          3  initiatives.

          4                 Additionally, Fiscal Year 1998, the

          5  City Council permitted the Board to roll over 258.6

          6  million and surplus funds that went back to school

          7  districts and high schools to help students meet and

          8  achieve its standards.

          9                 We hope that this type of support for

         10  public education in New York City will continue now

         11  and well into the future.

         12                 While the Committee supports these

         13  actions we recognize that the Board must continue to

         14  meet ongoing fiscal restraints and alleviate several

         15  problems in the school system, such as overcrowding,

         16  infrastructure, maintenance and repair and low

         17  performance schools.

         18                 With this in mind, the Committee

         19  hopes to learn today more details on the

         20  Chancellor's initiative and vision for the school

         21  system for Fiscal Year 2000 and the options being

         22  considered to deal with the problems that plague our

         23  school system.

         24                 As Chair of the Education Committee,

         25  I can assure you that this Committee is here to
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          2  assist in any way possible because we know that the

          3  children of this City deserve nothing less than the

          4  best from those who serve them.

          5                 I am going to just ask the

          6  Chancellor, the new Chancellor, because he has lost

          7  some weight, I can't see him. I kind of think that

          8  is positive, we need to shout it out all over to New

          9  York City for a lot of us that need to do the same

         10  thing.

         11                 CHANCELLOR CREW: You don't really

         12  need to do that, but if you feel the need --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: You do look like

         14  a new person there.

         15                 I am going to let you go ahead,

         16  Chancellor Crew, and start your testimony. Identify

         17  yourself and the people who are with you for the

         18  record.

         19                 I think when you start late,

         20  everybody is off track, so we are going to move on.

         21                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Good morning,

         22  members of the Committee. And thank you very, very

         23  much, Chairwoman Wooten.

         24                 With me today, to my far left is

         25  Beverly Donohue, who is the CFO for the New York

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            7

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  City Public Schools. Next to her is Harry Spence, as

          3  you well know, who is Deputy Chancellor, and to my

          4  right is Dr. Judith Rizzo, who is a Deputy

          5  Chancellor also, for Curriculum and Instruction.

          6                 The testimony this morning I believe

          7  is before you in written form, I think in the

          8  interest of time what I would like to do is to

          9  indicate that I will read the majority of this,

         10  although some of it I may talk somewhat

         11  extemporaneously through and then provide ample

         12  opportunity for the joint committees to answer -- or

         13  rather to ask questions.

         14                 I appreciate this opportunity to

         15  comment on the Fiscal Year 2000 Preliminary Budget

         16  on the status of the needs of the 1.1 million

         17  children in New York City.

         18                 As you may remember, last year's

         19  preliminary budget, I asked you to help us sustain

         20  the vital programs that reform essentially the

         21  raising of the bar for the achievement of our

         22  students. You delivered that help, and I am very

         23  much appreciative of that and in turn our students

         24  delivered and improved results for the third

         25  consecutive year.
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          2                 Very briefly, let me summarize some

          3  of the highlights during that time. In 1997/'98,

          4  scores on the CTB-R, the Citywide reading test rose

          5  2.3 percentage points, with 49.6 percent of students

          6  in grades three through eight scoring at or above

          7  grade level.

          8                 For the first time since 1998, more

          9  than 50 percent of our third graders scored at or

         10  above grade level. Indeed over the past two years,

         11  Citywide reading scores have risen faster than at

         12  any time since the 1980/'81 school year.

         13                 Our high school students are also

         14  making the same type of progress. In January of

         15  1999, an astounding 37,500 more students -- let me

         16  just repeat that because it is a very, very

         17  important number. In January of 1999, an astounding

         18  37,500 more students took the rigorous Regents exam

         19  in English than in January of the previous year.

         20                 What is more impressive is the fact

         21  that the rate of passing for grades seven through

         22  12, in this case 72.1 percent, was on par with the

         23  past rate from the previous year before, even though

         24  many more students took the test.

         25                 The results tell us that our
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          2  expanding the platform for learning is working.

          3                 The answer to continuing results is

          4  quite simple. We need to continue funding of

          5  programs that produce them.

          6                 I am pleased to report that the

          7  preliminary Fiscal Year 2000 budget not only does

          8  that but essentially institutionalizes these

          9  programs, since we have started, as the system has

         10  begun to turn around.

         11                 My testimony talks specifically to

         12  the issues of Project Read, and you have heard me

         13  talk ultimately about how much that has made a

         14  dramatic contribution to our overall goal of

         15  improved achievement.

         16                 You have also heard me signal to you

         17  the desire to continue the restoration of the arts

         18  to the City school system and with the help of the

         19  Mayor and the City Council we have been able to do

         20  just that.

         21                 Let me just talk about one other

         22  element of the reform package that we have mounted

         23  here.

         24                 The Preliminary Budget also increases

         25  funding for something we called Break-Away, a summer
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          2  literacy camp initiative.

          3                 Last year 1,300 fourth through eighth

          4  graders from 47 schools throughout the City

          5  participated in this program, and the results were

          6  actually inspiring. These students, many of whom had

          7  never been outside the City before, participated in

          8  everything from nature hikes to outdoor science

          9  projects and campfire sing-alongs, all of which was

         10  tied to serious literacy curriculum.

         11                 The Fiscal Year 2000 budget

         12  allocation will allow us to send 4,000 students to

         13  Break-Away camps during the coming summer, putting

         14  us well on our way to our goal of serving 10,000

         15  students through this program over the course of the

         16  next three years.

         17                 In addition, as you well know, there

         18  are tremendous strides being made in special

         19  education, and last spring we began a concerted

         20  effort to reform the special education referral

         21  process.

         22                 For too long are system has sent

         23  students to special education instead of providing

         24  them with appropriate support in a general education

         25  program, and all too often, instead of being
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          2  challenges, these students simply languished.

          3                 To end this practice we are

          4  reevaluating the placements of children currently in

          5  special education and improving a process by which

          6  children are initially placed in special ed.

          7                 We have transferred responsibility

          8  for special education placement for the local level,

          9  placing evaluators under the supervision of

         10  superintendents and principals, rather than the

         11  central bureaucracy.

         12                 As a result, we are doing a better

         13  job of ensuring that our students receive

         14  appropriate services. From July 1998 to January

         15  1999, special education referrals declined by 22

         16  percent, compared to the period of July '97 through

         17  January of '98.

         18                 Moreover, the number of students who

         19  were placed back in the general education programs

         20  from September of '98 to January of '99, rose by 16

         21  percent compared to the same period during the

         22  1997/'98 school year.

         23                 The Preliminary Budget allocates $8

         24  million to fund this decentralization on a permanent

         25  basis.
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          2                 In addition, it provides $3 million

          3  to mount an effort for our bilingual education

          4  programs, which will enable our English language

          5  learners to meet higher standards in less time.

          6                 Another issue that has complemented

          7  our reform efforts has been the reduction, or rather

          8  the increased support for SURR schools and reducing

          9  the number of SURR schools and at low-performing

         10  schools.

         11                 To that end, for two years in a row,

         12  we have succeeded in removing 18 schools per year

         13  from the state's list of schools under registration

         14  review.

         15                 This is the highest number of schools

         16  removed in a single year since the SURR program was

         17  established a decade ago. But it is still not

         18  enough, and you and I both know that.

         19                 The overwhelming majority of schools

         20  on the SURR list are still in New York City. We must

         21  work harder with business, with community

         22  organizations and countless others throughout the

         23  City to get even more schools removed from the SURR

         24  list and place our low-performing schools on the

         25  road to recovery.
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          2                 The Preliminary Budget allocates $5

          3  million to assist administrators and staff at SURR

          4  and low-performing schools in restructuring those

          5  schools and improving their programs, and I ask for

          6  your support.

          7                 If I can now move to the conversation

          8  of Charters, of the conversion and the development

          9  of them.

         10                 I ask for your help in supporting one

         11  of the most ambitious efforts that we are

         12  undertaking here.

         13                 As you know, I have recently

         14  announced a framework for establishing Charter

         15  schools in New York City.

         16                 Under our plan, several schools

         17  throughout the City have agreed to convert to

         18  Charter status, and two community school districts

         19  will have an opportunity to establish Charter-like

         20  schools as well.

         21                 We not only have invited educators

         22  with new ideas to approach us with proposals, but we

         23  are also aggressively asking the private sector to

         24  join us in creating an industry-based Charter school

         25  model that will prepare our students in better
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          2  providing them with the skills in today's economy.

          3                 The Preliminary Budget allocates $2.5

          4  million next year to move this program forward.

          5                 Also, now I want to talk a little bit

          6  about another topic that has been in the news but

          7  more importantly in our own thinking, and I say that

          8  to you in part because many of the dollars that were

          9  alluded to in the opening comments by Chairwoman

         10  Wooten were surplus dollars and I know there always

         11  seems to be some question as to whether or not this

         12  system should in fact ever have a surplus, should we

         13  ever be able to roll money and keep money and what

         14  would we do with it in the event that we did, and I

         15  want to suggest to you that as we talk about all of

         16  these items, the question of how we use and how we

         17  plan, how we use funds and how we plan for the use

         18  of those funds becomes extremely important to us,

         19  and the surplus idea is equally an important item.

         20                 The ending of social promotion is

         21  something that we believe makes very, very good

         22  sense but also commands the use of some of the

         23  dollars that have previously been talked about as

         24  surplus dollars.

         25                 The additional request to the FY 2000
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          2  budget then is aimed at providing us an opportunity

          3  to make great advances in this area.

          4                 And while the Preliminary Budget

          5  meets many of the goals that we have for City

          6  funding, we still have some very significant unmet

          7  needs and one of them is in this area of ending

          8  social promotion.

          9                 Among the most important, our funds

         10  just support this ending of social promotion, and

         11  next year we will institute tougher promotional

         12  standards for passage into the fourth and eighth

         13  grade.

         14                 And as we do this, we need to make

         15  sure that students have the help that they need to

         16  meet that challenge.

         17                 With Project Read, expanding summer

         18  school programs and the announced federal and state

         19  programs to reduce early grade class size, there are

         20  many efforts which taken in concert are underway to

         21  prepare next year's fourth graders. We need a

         22  parallel investment in the future of our seventh and

         23  eighth graders as well, and thus I am asking for

         24  $19.3 million to lower class sizes and to provide

         25  extra instruction for students in those grades who
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          2  are at risk of not meeting our standards.

          3                 The next area has to do with high

          4  school graduation requirements. And as you know,

          5  high school graduation standards are phased in by

          6  the state, we will also need to expand the supports

          7  for our upper grade students who will be affected by

          8  them.

          9                 This year we reduced class sizes in

         10  English for our 11th graders, who now need to pass

         11  English Regents in order to graduate. And as a

         12  result of these smaller classes, our 11th graders

         13  were able to bring their pass rate on the English

         14  Regents to over 80 percent. Eighty percent of our

         15  11th grade class Citywide.

         16                 Next year our 11th graders will have

         17  to pass the English and global studies Regents in

         18  order to graduate from high school, and I am seeking

         19  an additional $35.3 million, 10.3 from local sources

         20  and the remainder from the state, to provide smaller

         21  classes to students who will actually need them.

         22                 Furniture replacement. Once again I

         23  am asking for up to $20 million in funding to

         24  replace worn-out furniture and equipment in our

         25  classrooms, libraries and science laboratories.
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          2                 As we move toward establishing a

          3  cycle of maintenance for our school buildings, it

          4  makes sense that we being a similar cycle to replace

          5  old desk chairs and lab equipment for science

          6  classes, which only last a relatively short period

          7  of time.

          8                 The sports, and the notion of being

          9  fit for life, we hope to work with you and the Mayor

         10  to rebuild the sports programs, as well as we did

         11  with the arts programs Citywide.

         12                 Our budget includes $20 million to

         13  support Fit For Life, a new comprehensive effort to

         14  restore our athletic program.

         15                 This money represents a first year's

         16  installment to allow elementary and middle schools

         17  to operate after school and intramural sports, and I

         18  envision three years from now a total of $60 million

         19  a year dedicated to this purpose in our Expense

         20  Budget.

         21                 The School Leadership Teams, another

         22  very important aspect of the reform that we have

         23  undertaken, I asked that you assist our school

         24  system in establishing a future where the most

         25  critical decisions about spending will be made, not

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            18

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  by us at central office, but frankly by school

          3  leadership teams closer to where children learn.

          4                 School leadership teams will be in

          5  place in every school by next fall. They will use

          6  their knowledge to make intelligent and focused

          7  spending decisions which address local needs, and

          8  last year over 30 percent of our schools submitted

          9  their own budget request to community school

         10  districts. We were able to fund over two-thirds of

         11  these requests providing $100 million to support

         12  school level priorities, and with your help I hope

         13  we will provide up to $169 million to continue

         14  addressing school level needs.

         15                 Let me talk now about the FY 2000

         16  state budget. And as I have explained to you today,

         17  the 47 percent of our education dollars are funded

         18  by local government remains because of your help in

         19  relatively good shape.

         20                 This is not the case with the 43

         21  percent of our dollars funded by the State. The

         22  Governor's proposed FY 2000 budget represents a

         23  major retreat from the education commitments he made

         24  in 1998. A year ago, in the State Of The City

         25  Address, Governor Pataki declared that, "Pre-K
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          2  works", and then promised to increase

          3  pre-kindergarten funding ten-fold by the Year 2001.

          4                 He also asserted that we must

          5  continue the task of "limiting class size to 20".

          6  And in 1997, the State Budget Agreement, the

          7  Governor committed to support long-term investment

          8  in needy urban school districts to ensure, in his

          9  words, that all school districts receive the

         10  equitable state aid they need to support the

         11  educational programs our children require.

         12                 As part of this agreement, the

         13  legislature passed the School Tax Relief, known as

         14  STAR Program, which mainly benefitted suburban

         15  communities, and provides a proportionately lower

         16  benefit to New York City residents.

         17                 But in the Governor's proposed

         18  budget, the balance inherent in this design is now

         19  broken.

         20                 STAR received $570 million in the

         21  proposed Fiscal Year 2000 State Budget, more than

         22  double the State-wide increase in education funding.

         23                 The budget also fails to support

         24  multi-year commitments to universal pre-K, early

         25  grade class size reduction and building maintenance.
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          2                 It fails to invest in new standards

          3  and even fails to provide adequate funding to keep

          4  up with the cost of inflation.

          5                 We cannot accept a state budget that

          6  perpetrates a $1,300 per pupil gap in funding

          7  between New York City and the rest of the state.

          8                 These dollars, if available to our

          9  students, could and should be used to reduce class

         10  size, provide extended day, or summer school

         11  program, summer programs and attract more qualified

         12  teachers to New York City with better pay incentives

         13  and working conditions.

         14                 I ask for your help in lobbying the

         15  legislature and the Governor to remedy this legacy

         16  of inadequate support.

         17                 In a year of near record state

         18  surpluses, the following restorations and

         19  initiatives are not too much to ask.

         20                 First, provide $95.2 million to fully

         21  fund 29,000 pre-kindergarten slots promised in law a

         22  year ago.

         23                 Secondly, restore $47.8 million for

         24  early grade class size reduction, which the Governor

         25  eliminated.
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          2                 Third, support the Regents' plan to

          3  increase extraordinary needs aid by $161 million

          4  statewide, with $101 million going to New York City

          5  to help at-risk students meet higher standards.

          6                 Fourth, address New York City's

          7  inequitable state share of state aid.

          8                 Fifth, restore the $33.3 million in

          9  minor maintenance aid eliminated by the Governor.

         10                 Sixth, restore categorical programs,

         11  and grants rather, that have been a part of the base

         12  funding of our school for years, and last and

         13  certainly not least, increase the payments of prior

         14  year claims to pay down $700 million owed to our

         15  school system in state aid on an agreed upon

         16  multi-year period allowing us to use up to $400

         17  million of it to build new schools.

         18                 Since the Prior Year Claims issue

         19  continues to come up, I wish to publicly commend the

         20  example of State Senator Daniel Hevesi, who stood up

         21  on the floor of the Senate some time ago to protest

         22  the passage of a special bill for another district

         23  that had submitted school aid claims rather late.

         24                 The bill allowed receipt of payment

         25  for prior year claims in the current year as an
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          2  exception to the rule.

          3                 Such courtesies to upstate districts

          4  are routine, and as Senator Hevesi rightly pointed

          5  out, this courtesy has never been extended to the

          6  New York City Board of Education.

          7                 I would like to devote some time now

          8  to the Moreland Act Commission.

          9                 You are well aware that Governor

         10  Pataki has established a Moreland Act Commission to

         11  investigate the Board of Education, and has provided

         12  $3.5 million in its proposed budget to fund its

         13  activities.

         14                 It is focusing on two major topics,

         15  and you know them well, the School Construction

         16  Authority, the Board of Education's attendance

         17  practices, and let me address this situation rather

         18  briefly.

         19                 While the SCA has had a history of

         20  management problems, there has been in the most

         21  recent past in project delivery and accountability

         22  through improved reporting, it has increased.

         23                 But more needs to be done, and I take

         24  particular issue with the Governor's singling out

         25  New York City's attendance practices from those of
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          2  other school districts.

          3                 When the Moreland Commission was

          4  announced, the Governor pointed to Fiscal exposure

          5  to the state as a prime cause of this investigation.

          6  He even mentioned $150 million a year as a possible

          7  level of overpayment by the State due to

          8  inaccuracies of our data.

          9                 I would like to state clearly today

         10  that the use of this number is ungrounded and

         11  inflammatory.

         12                 Let us walk through a hypothetical

         13  case based on real data.

         14                 Assume for the sake of argument that

         15  we overstated our average daily attendance to the

         16  State by one percent, or 11,000 students.

         17                 Let me point out that this number

         18  vastly exceeds any findings of attendance over

         19  reporting from any of the ongoing investigation. The

         20  value we would receive in state aid for those 11,000

         21  students would be about $660,000. That is one-fifth

         22  of the $3.5 million the Governor has set aside to

         23  investigate the Board of Education next year.

         24                 We do not condone inaccurate data,

         25  and we vigorously investigate instances where we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            24

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  find it. We revised our procedures when they are

          3  part of the problem and refer any information

          4  concerning possible fraud to special Commissioner Ed

          5  Stanzik.

          6                 The State Comptroller also audits our

          7  attendance practices, and given the significant

          8  oversight already in place, when the Governor issues

          9  a budget that breaks his commitment to our City

         10  schools, we can think of much more urgent uses of

         11  this $3.5 million.

         12                 I am going to move to my conclusion

         13  at this point.

         14                 Over the past three years, through

         15  changing fiscal circumstances we have worked

         16  relentlessly to provide better services and higher

         17  standards for children in this City.

         18                 As our efforts continue to bear

         19  fruit, now is the time to redouble those efforts to

         20  sustain the progress that we have made. With a

         21  strong economy both here in the City and the State

         22  as a whole, we have an opportunity not only to

         23  address our students instructional needs, but at

         24  long last reverse the decline of our infrastructure

         25  resulting from the generations of neglect.
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          2                 I asked you to join me in this task

          3  and I am happy to answer any questions that you have

          4  today.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Good morning,

          7  Chancellor.

          8                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Good morning.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: By the way, I am

         10  absolutely amazed, I was away for a few days and I

         11  don't even think my staff knew I was gone, you went

         12  to California and you made the front page.

         13                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Next time you go to

         14  California for me and I will stay here.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: All right, we can

         16  talk about that.

         17                 Chancellor, a couple of questions.

         18  Thank you for your testimony. And may I say that I

         19  wholeheartedly concur with your statements

         20  concerning the Moreland Commission. I think it is

         21  grossly unfair and obviously politically motivated

         22  and I am at a total loss to understand the intent

         23  behind -- I think I do understand the intent behind

         24  this action and I think it is truly outrageous.

         25                 Also, your statements concerning the
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          2  School Construction Authority, I think for the first

          3  time in many years it is really heading in the right

          4  direction, and its attack on it at this stage, at

          5  this level, seems also equally puzzling when it is

          6  finally starting under its new leadership to climb

          7  out of the morass that it was previously mired into.

          8                 I do, however, have some other

          9  questions. May I commend you, Chancellor, on your

         10  position concerning the voucher program? I

         11  wholeheartedly concur with that which you, the

         12  position that you took and I think it was courageous

         13  and appropriate.

         14                 May I ask if in the course of the

         15  next several months while we are in this budget

         16  negotiation the Voucher Program were to come to us

         17  in a different setting other than through the Board

         18  of Education, would you be equally opposed to its

         19  use and its impact upon the public school system?

         20                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I am on record and

         21  will forever be on record as opposing any use of

         22  public money for private schools, and I have been as

         23  clear about that as I can possibly be. I don't

         24  intend to change that position at all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you, that's
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          2  good.

          3                 Now, concerning the Charter schools,

          4  this Council, through my Chairmanship a couple of

          5  years back, together with Council Member Wooten, we

          6  did a public hearing where we raised the issue of

          7  Charter schools. This was much before the current

          8  debate and much before approval by the State

          9  Legislature, and to say that we were skewed by

         10  various interest groups, so as to put it mildly, but

         11  we courageously nevertheless came out with a report

         12  expressing our wish and our desire that there be an

         13  attempt at trying to implement at least a test to

         14  see if Charter schools can work in the City of New

         15  York. So, I am delighted that we have this

         16  opportunity.

         17                 Is there anything in place that will

         18  enable the Board of Ed -- let me ask this first. Who

         19  will have the ability to determine as to whether or

         20  not an application for a Charter school is approved

         21  or not approved?

         22                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Ultimately that will

         23  be my decision and it will then go before the Board

         24  of Regents.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: So in other
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          2  words, it would have to go up to the Board of

          3  Regents with or without your recommendation for

          4  approval?

          5                 CHANCELLOR CREW: That's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now, let us

          7  hypothetically say that a religious institution were

          8  to propose a creation of a Charter school, is there

          9  any rule, regulation or is this your own operation

         10  of your own opinion as to whether or not a religious

         11  institution can sponsor a charter school?

         12                 CHANCELLOR CREW: It is my

         13  understanding that they cannot sponsor such a

         14  school.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: That is a product

         16  of the State Legislation?

         17                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Function of the law.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

         19                 All right, now, you had asked for an

         20  allocation of 12 and a half million dollars, I

         21  believe you asked for, for reduced class size.

         22                 CHANCELLOR CREW: That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Considering the

         24  fact that we are still struggling to accomplish the

         25  construction of enough seats, how would these

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            29

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  dollars, I assume it is on the expense side, how

          3  would that result in reducing class size?

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The result

          5  --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Harry, would you

          7  identify yourself, please?

          8                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Yes. Deputy

          9  Chancellor Harry Spence, Deputy Chancellor for

         10  Operations for the Board of Ed.

         11                 The additional 12.5 million for

         12  reduced class sizes focused in seventh and eighth

         13  grades for two reasons, one of which the Chancellor

         14  and Deputy Chancellor Rizzo could speak to, which is

         15  the instructional issue, of course that is a

         16  critical year in terms of the transition into high

         17  school.

         18                 But secondly, because in fact that

         19  can be accomplished in middle schools, because

         20  middle schools is the one place in the system where

         21  in fact there is significant, across the system

         22  there is significant additional capacity. So, we

         23  believe this could be accomplished in middle schools

         24  because the space is there.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: It is blatantly
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          2  simple.

          3                 Okay, Ms. Rizzo.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Yes.

          5                 Again, as Harry has noted, and as the

          6  Chancellor mentioned in his remarks, we are

          7  particularly concerned about those youngsters. We

          8  are introducing new performance standards, rather

          9  promotion standards next year and those grades will

         10  be affected, and the investment in these youngsters

         11  will yield a long-term investment in terms of the

         12  numbers and percentages of our youngsters who can

         13  take and pass the new Regents requirement.

         14                 For too many years youngsters have

         15  entered ninth grade, underprepared and overaged.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: We agree with

         17  you. As a matter of fact, one of the initiatives

         18  that we a couple of years back tried to incorporate

         19  and to perpetuate was middle school initiative.

         20  Because we are aware of what you just testified, so

         21  I am glad.

         22                 By the way, it is good seeing you,

         23  Judy.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Nice to see

         25  you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Okay.

          3                 CHANCELLOR CREW: For the record,

          4  please note, Councilwoman Wooten, that Judy also

          5  lost weight and that Harry is already skinny.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: May I say, is

          7  this something that I missed? Is it true that a

          8  substantial amount of money in the Board of

          9  Education is spent for Spa facilities? I am kidding.

         10  It was clearly a joke. But you do have Weight

         11  Watcher meetings.

         12                 Okay, just to satisfy my own paranoia

         13  and my growing fear, have you tested and have you

         14  adequately and competently prepared for the Y2K

         15  phenomenon?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The Board

         17  has been working for over three years now in Y2K. We

         18  have the good fortune that in comparison to most

         19  organizations and agencies our problem is relatively

         20  small. Still meaningful, but relatively small. That

         21  is the full budget required for Y2K work at the

         22  Board of Ed is, as I remember, in the vicinity of 5

         23  million or 6 million, in a City where we represent a

         24  quarter of the budget, and obviously the Citywide

         25  costs are far greater. That is the result that many
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          2  of our major systems, including most importantly,

          3  our financial systems, already were Y2K compatible.

          4                 So, it is on relative terms a smaller

          5  problem for the Board of Ed than for many

          6  organizations and agencies by good fortune and some

          7  good planning.

          8                 We have made a great deal of progress

          9  on ensuring that the remaining central systems are

         10  compliant and we are in very good shape on that.

         11                 We have been focusing recently on two

         12  areas: one, we developed a handbook for every

         13  school, a lengthy handbook, which actually has been

         14  adopted by the Council of Great City Schools as a

         15  model for school systems around the country and they

         16  are distributing that Y2K manual nationally to other

         17  school systems as a model of an approach to this and

         18  individual schools are now moving forward and we are

         19  working obviously focusing on particularly now on

         20  contingency plans for the actual upcoming date and

         21  key decisions about ensuring that we have

         22  contingency plans, not only for any issues that

         23  might arise in our own system, but obviously we are

         24  dependent on transportation systems and the like, so

         25  in case other contingencies outside of our control
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          2  fail, that we also are able to respond to those.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: This Council

          4  allocated a significant sum of money to computerize

          5  the schools and to create computer labs in many of

          6  the schools, will you be able to address the

          7  problem, not only with the Administration or the

          8  Board of Education, but in the teaching facilities?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Yes.

         10  Obviously, again, the good news is that the more

         11  recent computers are already Y2K compatible, so the

         12  major money that we spent in the last couple of

         13  years, those where we spent, Project Smart Schools,

         14  for example, those computers because of the era in

         15  which they were manufactured, are already compatible

         16  with this transition.

         17                 The issue is making sure that schools

         18  know how to and set about the work of date

         19  correction on earlier computers, and older

         20  computers, and ensuring that that occurs. This

         21  manual lays check lists in all of those areas and

         22  the like and schools are today working on that

         23  problem to ensure that come December 31st they are

         24  prepared.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I have one other
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          2  question on the capital side.

          3                 The school districts recently held

          4  their public hearings on the five-year plan, the

          5  Year, Fiscal Year 2000 to 2004, and you are the

          6  recipient of their recommendations, and as a

          7  consequence of that, there is a proposal to spend

          8  $10.9 billion over the next five years.

          9                 Have you determined where that $10.9

         10  million is going to come from? What levels of

         11  government?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Yes, when

         13  we initially issued the draft plan for public review

         14  and reaction and comment, for the first time the

         15  Board included in its five-year plan a detailed

         16  budgeting plan, a funding plan for the five-year

         17  plan, and in fact that $10.9 billion is broken out

         18  in detail by City, State and Federal contributions,

         19  and we actually have sought with this plan to put

         20  forth a fiscally responsible and realistic plan.

         21  This is not a plan that is intended to be a pure pie

         22  in the sky wishlist but instead to look

         23  realistically at an aggressive funding program that

         24  represents the most that we could realistically hope

         25  to receive in the near future. And then to establish
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          2  our priorities within the framework.

          3                 Obviously this means there are many

          4  priorities that we would love to fund, but we just

          5  at this point in time don't realistically see

          6  funding sources to achieve, and that has caused

          7  obviously some pain in the system, but we think that

          8  that is necessary as part of forwarding a plan to

          9  the public that represents something that really can

         10  be accomplished if we set our wills to it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Now, assuming for

         12  a moment, and we don't know that this will happen or

         13  not happen, that the actual allocation or

         14  anticipation is below the $10.9 billion, does the

         15  Board make the determination as to what items will

         16  fall out of the plan?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: There is

         18  not at this stage a formal determination of that

         19  kind. The plan doesn't have a statement that says

         20  here is what won't be done if.

         21                 There have been discussions about

         22  that, frankly, as always, a debate and argument

         23  about that, and so that issue has been talked about,

         24  but at this stage of course our goal is instead to

         25  focus everyone on achieving that full level of
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          2  funding and our hope would be that that would be the

          3  focus of our efforts as we move forward, rather than

          4  dividing our energies or dividing our City right now

          5  at a time when the State Legislature is the key,

          6  really the key forum now for debate about this

          7  issue.

          8                 It seems enormously important that

          9  this City hold together as a single unified unit and

         10  go forward to the Legislature saying fund the whole

         11  thing.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Tell the Governor

         13  he owes us a half a billion dollars from last year.

         14                 All right, thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I would just like

         16  to briefly introduce my colleagues.

         17                 We have Council Member Golden from

         18  Brooklyn, Council Member Koslowitz, who is a member

         19  of the Education Committee, from Queens. Council

         20  Member Cruz from the Bronx, and a member of the

         21  Committee. Council Member Fiala, a member of the

         22  Committee, and from Staten Island. And Council

         23  Member Linares, also a member of the Education

         24  Committee.

         25                 Chancellor, Herb Berman had mentioned
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          2  who will eventually sign off on the Charter concept,

          3  a Charter school, and you had indicated that Regents

          4  play a very active role in making that selection?

          5                 CHANCELLOR CREW: In actually

          6  approving.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: And I have a

          8  question, I hope they hear me too. Will they also

          9  assume the responsibility of performance and all of

         10  the other things that they hold against us, when we

         11  don't comply, like funding?

         12                 And if a school is not performing,

         13  and maybe you had a reason for not making that type

         14  of selection as I had of our system here in the City

         15  of New York, then who assumes that responsibility?

         16                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Well, one of the

         17  things that when this bill came to the floor

         18  initially, one of the things that was very a very

         19  disconcerting element of it, and there were two for

         20  me, one was this question of the authority to

         21  intervene if we see a school that is in low

         22  performing or continuing a pattern of low

         23  performing, the law essentially, as I understand it,

         24  allows for the school to have three years in which

         25  to demonstrate its levels of performance, but at any
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          2  point during the course of that three-year period,

          3  if in fact its performance improves, it takes it out

          4  of harm's way, if you will.

          5                 In other words, the same

          6  interventions that I would have gone into and

          7  actually implemented in one of my schools under my

          8  direct authority, as opposed to under Charter

          9  authority, it creates a very different threshold for

         10  the schools, by comparison of the schools that I

         11  have.

         12                 I am very concerned about that

         13  element, because I, frankly, think it is an unfair

         14  standard. I think it is an imposition of a very

         15  different threshold.

         16                 In any case, I want to support the

         17  notion that even Charter schools have some

         18  connection to the system as a whole, to the extent

         19  that we see a school failing, regardless of whether

         20  it is one of our regular schools, or a Charter

         21  school, I believe that we will have significant

         22  conversation with those that are the sponsoring

         23  agents or collaborating agents in having created the

         24  Charter school.

         25                 And my intent would be to be
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          2  supportive of taking appropriate action, either

          3  directly or certainly to spur the partners at will

          4  that put this together, to spur them to improving

          5  the school.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I could

          7  understand that, but I also feel very strongly on

          8  the past history with people who are making

          9  decisions, and I am not criticizing their decision,

         10  it is just that if they are helping to pack our

         11  luggage, most certainly they should carry it at some

         12  point. We shouldn't carry the complete load of

         13  everybody's luggage, unless everything in the bag

         14  belongs to us.

         15                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I could not agree

         16  with you more.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: The other thing

         18  that I am, you know, I am concerned about, and I

         19  heard it loud and clear and I was not able to get a

         20  response from the Board, it does not relate to the

         21  testimony but it falls in line with the question I

         22  just raised about the standards. Everybody feels

         23  that they should be high. But there is a mechanism

         24  that should be in place so that we don't hurt or

         25  make mistakes, and I heard Commissioner Mills
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          2  indicate last week that whether we have the funding

          3  or not, it is still in place, and that kind of

          4  bothered me, because early on when we first started

          5  to discuss these standards and so forth, we also

          6  talked about teacher training that would go along

          7  with this kind of thing, and in long discussions

          8  with Judy, you know we had that hearing purposely to

          9  try to clear it up, but we got -- what I felt I got

         10  was enforced mandates to say it is going to be

         11  whether I give you the money or not.

         12                 How would you respond to that?

         13                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Well, I think -- let

         14  me tell you what I hope is meant by all of that

         15  conversation. I would hope what is meant is that the

         16  moral obligation remains in place, regardless of

         17  whether the money is there or not. The moral

         18  obligation to educate these children to the highest

         19  standard is in place.

         20                 But then insofar as the financial

         21  obligation to support that is concerned, I would

         22  hope that people who are in positions, such as the

         23  Commissioner, the Governor and Board of Regents,

         24  other people who have something to say about this, I

         25  would hope that they would really understand the
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          2  impractical nature of a comment to suggest that

          3  doing this either with no revenue stream or with an

          4  extraordinarily limited revenue stream is foolhardy.

          5                 We have tried so many times in public

          6  education to do something right, and even when we

          7  could coordinate and do what -- get everybody on the

          8  same page to accept that it is right

          9  programmatically, always there is this history, this

         10  long history of people being unwilling then to fund

         11  it.

         12                 I think that this is an extraordinary

         13  time in public education where people both know what

         14  to do, and they know how to go about doing it at

         15  every level, and I think it really is going to come

         16  down to political will to make these dollars

         17  available.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: You know, this is

         19  a very critical time in our system, and I say that

         20  because I have been a part of it so long. I had

         21  anticipated a lot of resolves taking place on my way

         22  out but I recognize early on I was dreaming a

         23  different kind of Martin Luther King dream, because

         24  every time I wake up in the morning there is

         25  something new on the table and we have not resolved
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          2  what has been on the table for years and years and

          3  years, and I had anticipated that the light was

          4  shining a little brighter, but we are not on the

          5  same page. And I don't believe -- and I am not

          6  giving this to you to respond to --

          7                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Oh, okay.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I don't believe

          9  that there are people in our town that want to be on

         10  the same page, and I say that. But I know our

         11  children are on that page, and I know that we have

         12  to address that, and I am in hopes that all of this

         13  will come together ill-regardless.

         14                 I have not made too many comments,

         15  you know, it is a joke to say you are losing weight,

         16  but I have been trying very hard, Chancellor, to

         17  modify my behavior, and it is getting rough. I might

         18  have to go back to the old Priscilla Wooten, not

         19  marching and doing all of those things, but I might

         20  start to speak out on those issues that impact on

         21  our children, and I know you are tired of hearing

         22  about them, but I have a little Brandon and a little

         23  Reggie moving through that system and I have to be

         24  concerned, and D.J., who is three, and this is going

         25  to impact. And it brings back to mind again, where
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          2  in this town we forgive people and say you don't

          3  have to pay us back the money you owe us, and in the

          4  same breath we are fighting to say we need more

          5  money for pupils, and then we set up systems that

          6  talk about, oh I can educate that child for less

          7  than what you can educate them for, and we are

          8  saying in public education, you know, we have to get

          9  more money for pupils, and in the same breath $900

         10  million is owed us and some of our folks in this

         11  town are saying, you know, I will forgive you, you

         12  don't have to pay it back I am no understanding.

         13                 I am also not understanding the fact

         14  that we are talking about Charter schools and I am

         15  concerned will it affect the existing funding that

         16  you have to carry the system that we are trying to

         17  rectify. Will you have enough funding to carry on

         18  this concept with the thought that you have on the

         19  Charter concept? And I know we want to say yes we

         20  believe, I believe in high standards, but you can't

         21  hold me hostage to my belief if you are not going to

         22  give me the funds to make it realized.

         23                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Right.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: And I think that

         25  we need to talk about when high standards are set
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          2  up, it is set up for us to either agree or disagree.

          3  And who is going to disagree in this town?

          4                 And I am just concerned about the

          5  myth of decision-making on subjects like little

          6  children running around. What we should be careful

          7  when we make recommendations that we leave in the

          8  minds of people, parents like myself and my

          9  daughter, that it will impact, even though your

         10  children are not digressing in age but it will kick

         11  in at some point. But it frightens me that all of

         12  these things are coming to pass, and I believe

         13  somebody is missing. I believe some children are

         14  missing and it might be mine. And I have an

         15  obligation not only to my own but to all of the

         16  other children in the City because I know what is

         17  going to happen. It is happening in another area of

         18  health where everybody looks for the name and not

         19  what that name can provide for you, and when we woke

         20  up one morning we didn't have enough beds and so

         21  forth in our hospital system. It happened in banking

         22  when people said it is not important. You know, when

         23  I first moved into my community I had a bank, and

         24  because I worked down to the Board of Education I

         25  could walk around the corner on Montague and one
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          2  morning I woke up and I didn't have a bank there

          3  because I wasn't patronizing it.

          4                 So there is a lot of kinds of things

          5  that impact negative on some of the decisions that

          6  we are making, and we are all along, as educators we

          7  are going along with it because we should not be on

          8  record as saying I believe in it, but we have to

          9  look at the funding, we have to look what is

         10  existing. We are not out of the SURR school war yet,

         11  and we are being held hostage, you don't make some

         12  recommendations in SURR schools, I am going to come

         13  in there and I am going to take it over. These are

         14  the same people who are making new standards. These

         15  are the same people who are making new decisions and

         16  not even thinking about what is going on, or are not

         17  sensitive enough. I think they know but they are not

         18  sensitive enough to know what happens here in the

         19  City of New York, and sometimes we have to take

         20  these forums and kind of talk about it.

         21                 I know that these are the times and

         22  age where you are changing things so rapidly, you

         23  don't get over one before you go into another. Let's

         24  get over to SURR schools, and this brings back to

         25  mind some things that parents are saying. Out of all
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          2  of the kinds of social ills we have in this system,

          3  they still want to know about the arts program, they

          4  want to know Project Art, funding for Year 2000.

          5  What grade level will be the recipient of these

          6  funds, and what are the status of the Board's

          7  Annenburg fundraising efforts?

          8                 We still want to know that.  Along

          9  with all of the other things that are taking place,

         10  this is what we want to know.

         11                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Well, let me try to

         12  capture some of what you said in --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: You don't have to

         14  capture it all, but you know, I wanted them to hear

         15  it and I wanted you to hear it at the same time.

         16                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I do think we are at

         17  an extraordinary moment in a sense that what I said

         18  earlier I really do believe, this is really going to

         19  come down to will, because it is clearly money. And

         20  unfortunately, there are lots of people who every

         21  February come up with a sense of that same dream you

         22  alluded to, but then forget during the rest of the

         23  year how to make it come true. And I think the

         24  application of these conversations and of the sort

         25  of back room conversations that have to take place
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          2  around priorities, planning, facilities, fiscal

          3  obligations, et cetera, are going to be

          4  extraordinarily important to determining whether or

          5  not people throughout the entire year actually come

          6  up with an agreement that they are willing to make

          7  with the children of the City of New York to fund,

          8  to practice, to provide services for these kids as

          9  they try to beat these standards.

         10                 Everybody understands in any industry

         11  that growth requires investment, and all I am asking

         12  for essentially here is that you make the same

         13  investment that you would in any other industry, and

         14  that investment unfortunately I have to go through,

         15  you know, rounds and rounds and rounds of

         16  discussion, even when it is made, apparently even in

         17  this year it will be made late, our principals won't

         18  know, we are still in the process of doing things

         19  like preparing for universal pre-K without knowing

         20  in any way what we are really talking about on a

         21  dollar-for-dollar basis or even whether or not it

         22  will be funded and on and on and on.

         23                 So, our work is to some degree cut

         24  out for us based on the moral high ground, and for

         25  all practical purposes, in terms of what parents are
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          2  asking about things such as the arts, I can tell you

          3  that our commitment remains strong. I believe the

          4  Mayor's commitment in this case has remained strong,

          5  and to a very large degree, and Dr. Rizzo can speak

          6  to this in a moment, but to a very large degree,

          7  that commitment has had dramatic impact, dramatic

          8  impact, and I will let Dr. Rizzo tell you

          9  specifically where we are in terms of the actual

         10  numbers.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Well, within

         12  the FY 2000 allocation is a piece of the $75 million

         13  that was committed to the system and at that point

         14  every single school in the system, right now it is

         15  800, every single school in the system will have the

         16  benefits for the restoration of the arts in New York

         17  City public schools. And those dollars cover arts

         18  educators, professional development, curriculum

         19  development, so that we imbed it deep into the

         20  system with folks who are in schools that can

         21  continue this work. And as you know, that is

         22  augmented by the work of the Center for Arts

         23  Education, which was funded by Annenburg. They still

         24  have $1.8 million to raise to complete their piece

         25  of the picture, the bringing in the arts and
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          2  cultural institutions into our schools as well.

          3                 So, by the end of the Year 2000 every

          4  single one of our schools will have the arts

          5  restored to them.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: That is a breath

          7  of fresh air for parents to hear.

          8                 You know, even though we have crowded

          9  classrooms, we are underpaid by those folks that

         10  allocate money to us, parents still feel that those

         11  are the little necessary things that should be in

         12  place and children should not miss out on.

         13                 Chancellor, on the liability cost

         14  that we have, the 38.7 million due to aids and

         15  uncollected claims; could you just update us on the

         16  status of prior state aid claims, and how much aid

         17  has been claimed to date, and how much of the claim

         18  has been remitted?

         19                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Beverly Donohue can

         20  speak to those issues.

         21                 MS. DONOHUE: The $38 million to $39

         22  million that you are referencing is the amount of

         23  our prior year state aid claims that reaches the

         24  ten-year mark this year. Therefore it will be

         25  written down by the City Comptroller as not an
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          2  appropriate receivable in our budget, and we would

          3  be forced to pay for it in the current year.

          4                 In the Governor's budget he has

          5  appropriated a little over 8 million to pay down

          6  that almost 39 million. The balance, unless there is

          7  further action in the state, would come due against

          8  us and our current year budget in the current year.

          9                 This is a small portion of the over

         10  $720 million in school aid that is owed to the

         11  system already claimed and waiting for payment.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: We always talk

         13  about the rollover. Since this happened in that

         14  tenure, will you be in a position to utilize some of

         15  that money, Chancellor?

         16                 MS. DONOHUE: This financial plan

         17  shows $106 million that we would be rolling from our

         18  current year to next year, and all of that money is

         19  utilized in the list of programs the Chancellor

         20  described, the continuation of Read, the expansion

         21  of Arts, the need for special ed, bilingual and

         22  low-performing schools dollars. So, essentially this

         23  financial plan shows the full use of the total

         24  amount of surplus we have found to date in our

         25  budget in the current year, and would roll that into
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          2  next year.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: What I was trying

          4  to say is that you have already committed it, but

          5  what I was trying to say, if you were jammed to a

          6  point, could that money be utilized for this course?

          7                 CHANCELLOR CREW: You mean in terms of

          8  whether or not we could actually cover our own,

          9  cover that deficit?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Yes.

         11                 MS. DONOHUE: You could at the expense

         12  of cutting programs, yes.

         13                 CHANCELLOR CREW: But I want to go

         14  further than that, if I may.

         15                 As is pointed out, we could do that,

         16  and the way you would do it is you would eliminate

         17  something we have already allocated or actually

         18  already identified as having a priority for us.

         19                 I think we are at a point, I guess is

         20  what I am trying to ultimately communicate, we are

         21  at a point where that is an unacceptable option.

         22  That is a fully unacceptable option. This money is

         23  owed to the New York City children, and the second

         24  we start playing this game of, well, you owed us,

         25  and you mentioned this in your conversation a moment
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          2  ago, well you owe us, but by the way, we will figure

          3  out a way of being able to cover the hole for

          4  ourselves. That $38 million is going to grow

          5  infinitesimally over the course of the next several

          6  years, and I am not going to be able to cover that.

          7  And the very first time I can't cover it, everybody

          8  in New York City will forget about this obligation

          9  that we covered several years ago and they will say,

         10  well, you have either poorly spent your money, there

         11  will be articles and newspapers and all of these

         12  people who were playing games with this issue will

         13  ultimately declare that the Board and the

         14  Administration has mismanaged its funds over the

         15  course of the last several years and therefore has

         16  built a deficit that it can no longer cover.

         17                 I am going on record now as saying to

         18  you, that is a wholly unacceptable option. This

         19  state has enough money to be able to come up with

         20  $38 million to pay a prior year claim that we will

         21  in fact have to unfortunately be obligated to and

         22  pay ourselves if they don't, and that money will get

         23  larger and larger and larger over the course of the

         24  next several years as more and more dollars become,

         25  unfortunately they get written off by the City
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          2  Comptroller.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: That is exactly

          4  the point. I don't know if you were following me

          5  closely, and I heard it loud and clear where you

          6  said somebody was forgiving something again.

          7  Sometimes you make comments and you get the very

          8  answer that you wanted.

          9                 How can we as a City give up $900

         10  million and keep giving it up, knowing fully well

         11  that the children of this town -- and you know, I

         12  just said early on a couple of minutes ago, I think

         13  we need to bring our Comptroller in before this

         14  Committee. Because if you remember, it was this

         15  Education Committee that talked about the money that

         16  the state owed the City.

         17                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Nobody else

         19  wanted to talk about it. It was this Committee, it

         20  started the first year you were here, saying

         21  somebody has to talk about it.

         22                 My counsel to the Education Committee

         23  is out ill, but I am going to ask Finance if they

         24  would just look at the fact that we need to talk to

         25  the Comptroller of the City of New York and ask him
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          2  for the criteria that he used to forgive these kind

          3  of things that impact on what was due in the first

          4  place. We are not talking about property, we are

          5  talking about children, and I think we need to hear

          6  that.

          7                 I concur with you. You know, what I

          8  was really doing was asking you what Peter could you

          9  rob to pay Paul, that was the first Peter I could

         10  think of, was the rollover money that was there. I

         11  just wanted to know if that could happen. I know it

         12  is committed, and we know that if it was not

         13  committed you would be asking us for additional

         14  money. But I think we need to be honest with

         15  ourselves on why we are accepting that kind of

         16  scenario, that one could give up money that is due

         17  the City and we are still not getting the amount of

         18  money to people that we should be getting.

         19                 You talked about how much was due

         20  from the state and what our responsibilities are,

         21  and I just think that these are some of the areas

         22  that need to be addressed, and I am not prolonging

         23  any kind of a scenario to make me look good, I am

         24  talking in terms of the children of this City, and

         25  as you indicated, that 38.7 is going to get larger
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          2  and larger unless we are able to come up with a

          3  mechanism to get rid of it. And these are the things

          4  that I am talking about.

          5                 I am also talking about something

          6  that we truly believe in, but we know if we don't

          7  have the dollars to compensate teaching, our kids,

          8  some of our kids are going to lose.

          9                 Right now of course you can institute

         10  a class in a college that would pick up the

         11  standards, what happened to those kids up to that

         12  point when it kicks into the system? Those are the

         13  kinds of things I am concerned about, and those are

         14  the things that I believe that most of us who

         15  believe in education, I believe that sometimes we

         16  are held hostage in saying this is what we want, I

         17  dare you to say anything different, because we know

         18  that we want the best system, and in order to get

         19  the best system, we have to go along with somebody's

         20  program. And that program costs money and they are

         21  not giving us money.

         22                 I am going to let some of my other

         23  colleagues, I recognize we started a little late,

         24  but just my last one.

         25                 Please update me on the Committee --
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          2  please update the Committee on the loss of teachers'

          3  support aid; is this still a potential liability

          4  too?

          5                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes, it is.

          6                 The teacher support aid is basically

          7  been assumed to be part of the funding package for

          8  every year prior to the time that we came on the

          9  scene, and that money was -- I think $63 million is

         10  at risk. It is not at this point in time in the

         11  Governor's proposed budget. Failure to provide it

         12  has a devastating impact on an already low by

         13  comparative standards teacher salary base. It would

         14  obviously impact our ability to recruit teachers to

         15  the system, it obviously impacts teachers who are

         16  already in the system and who contemplate leaving by

         17  virtue of having a very, very non-competitive salary

         18  that they are already earning.

         19                 Again, when everybody needed this a

         20  year ago, I was supportive in providing an

         21  opportunity for our own dollars to be used to cover

         22  this gap. The return of that money is not in the

         23  Governor's budget, nor is the prospective year

         24  teacher support aid money in the budget.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: How would the
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          2  state proposal to limit funding for special ed

          3  affect our system?

          4                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Do you want to speak

          5  to that?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: And you know how

          7  I feel about special ed.

          8                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes.

          9                 MS. DONOHUE: The Governor's budget

         10  freezes the major elements of funding in the state

         11  for special ed purposes. That is an aid called

         12  public excess cost and that freeze would cost us

         13  $28.7 million, as compared to the law that is

         14  currently on the books.

         15                 In addition to that, the Governor

         16  takes special ed transportation and merges it with

         17  general transportation which is reimbursed at a

         18  lower rate, that additional merger of the two kinds

         19  of transportation aid would in fact cost us an

         20  additional $8 million.

         21                 We are concerned about the proposals

         22  also long term, because its restructuring

         23  essentially starts from this capped level and then

         24  says you can grow no more than two percent a year,

         25  regardless of whether your enrollment grows, whether
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          2  inflation is above that, so we are concerned that

          3  the depleted first year that grows out of this

          4  freeze is something that would be perpetuated into

          5  the future.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Boyland.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you,

          9  Madame Chair.

         10                 Hi. How are you today?

         11                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Very good.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Good.

         13                 Just to hit on a couple of questions.

         14  I am very concerned about the new construction of

         15  schools with the $10.9 billion, can you possibly, if

         16  not today at some point give us the status of all of

         17  the school buildings within New York City that are

         18  going to be developed within the new five-year plan

         19  and the old five-year plan?

         20                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Sure.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Two, coal

         22  furnace burners, that is a serious issue within my

         23  district because your reports, the status of 124

         24  conversion projects, but there are some still not in

         25  that piece that we are still looking for. Being a
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          2  member of the Environmental Committee, that is a

          3  very interesting issue to us in terms of our

          4  environment and how it affects our children, so we

          5  would like to at some point have an update on that.

          6                 Project Smart School, and I am moving

          7  kind of quickly because I know you have gone over it

          8  and the Chairperson has gone over some.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Excuse me. I just

         10  want to limit, some of them we have covered already,

         11  and I know that having the Chancellor go over and

         12  over it again on the same subject --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That is why I

         14  was trying --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: There is School

         16  Construction Authority who is coming up and that

         17  question you can raise to them, but I am going to

         18  limit to two questions, because what happens is I

         19  have budget questions to ask and sometimes you don't

         20  take that into consideration.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Citywide.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. I think

         24  Project Smart school we really need to go into, in

         25  terms of the wiring of our schools, and also the
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          2  update of the software, if there was a billion put

          3  into in the last plan and we are going to move

          4  forward, and I read some literature that was sent

          5  through in terms of an abundance of computers that

          6  are going to be going into our schools, but yet we

          7  haven't begun to look at the school, especially in

          8  our lower performance schools, they need a bigger

          9  focus on the Smart project within the future.

         10                 And my last question deals with our

         11  SURR schools. You made a statement that you are

         12  looking toward some of the business communities of

         13  private sectors to come into and do some of the

         14  eight pieces for the Smart schools, our SURR

         15  schools, does that include doing more teacher

         16  training processes with them, or opening up more

         17  teacher centers? Because what I am finding is that

         18  we also, as we move into our SURR schools, looking

         19  at our SURR schools and our schools that are moving

         20  on the Chancellor's list, that we aren't doing the

         21  necessary update or should do more of the necessary

         22  update for our teachers, and what does the budget

         23  look like to do more teacher training system, to do

         24  more computer technology for our teachers?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Okay,
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          2  Beverly can talk about the amount of money that we

          3  track that has been spent on professional

          4  development.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay.

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: But you are

          7  absolutely correct, the investment over the next

          8  several years has to be heavily in favor of

          9  professional development.

         10                 Our current teachers have not been

         11  prepared to do the level of work that is necessary

         12  to get our kids to the higher standards and many of

         13  the new teachers sadly who are coming to us, recent

         14  graduates, are also not well prepared in terms of

         15  technology, in terms of getting youngsters to higher

         16  standards.

         17                 So, I think you know that in every

         18  one of the schools that we took into the

         19  Chancellor's district, in the first and second years

         20  we were here, we began teacher centers in every one

         21  of those schools, and we have recommended that as an

         22  important piece of all of the SURR schools, because

         23  professional development has to be imbedded deep

         24  into the schools. It cannot just be sending folks to

         25  workshops, it has to be deep training, ongoing
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          2  training. And one of the reasons we talk about an

          3  expanded platform is not simply more time for

          4  youngsters, which is absolutely necessary to get the

          5  highest standards --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly.

          7                 MS. DONOHUE: -- But for the

          8  professionals as well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: You said a $5

         10  million in the Preliminary Budget was allocated, but

         11  you also said, Mr. Crew also said something about

         12  the private sector; do you foresee lots more funding

         13  being necessary? And if so, how much do you think

         14  should be allocated, or should we do some more

         15  solicitation in terms of that?

         16                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I don't think this

         17  is always and exclusively going to come down to

         18  financial investments.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Right.

         20                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I am really thinking

         21  that there can be and should be an opportunity for

         22  principals and others in the administrative --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Is the UFT

         24  included in this as well? I assume they are.

         25                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Well, if I may, let
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          2  me just continue my comment.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Sure.

          4                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I think that the

          5  benefits of collaborating are enormous and one

          6  benefit is that principals and/or teachers who in

          7  many cases in some of these schools operate almost

          8  in isolation, need to have a way of being able to

          9  find partners who can exchange both ideas and in

         10  some cases resources as a way of being able to

         11  improve work that they are doing.

         12                 Part of that obligation is what Dr.

         13  Rizzo talked about that the institution has to

         14  provide. But I think another part of it is something

         15  that really has to do with the notion and the need

         16  for more collaborative partnerships that are outside

         17  of the school that exist with business and

         18  community-based organizations, as a way of being

         19  able to strengthen the structures and strategies

         20  that are used in being able to provide services to

         21  children, also those services and supports for

         22  professionals in the building, be they teacher or

         23  administrator. And I think that as people now look

         24  at the whole idea of schools both improving but also

         25  being more competitive, it is not enough just to
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          2  improve, it is really are you improving enough that

          3  if the rules change tomorrow your parents, your

          4  children would stay with you, and because I view

          5  that these rules will change, and I am trying to

          6  create a culture in which the learning that takes

          7  place about how to be more, if you will, market

          8  competitive can be the learning that takes place

          9  through dialogue with outside agencies, including

         10  the business in the private sector, as well as the

         11  community-based organizations.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so is

         13  there an amount --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am going to

         15  have to --

         16                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I don't have an

         17  amount in my head, no.

         18                 I think some of this is going to

         19  range from in-kind services and resources to

         20  professional development support that has already

         21  taken on millions of dollars that would fall under

         22  an in-kind contribution that the businesses have

         23  made. I am just simply saying we really need to

         24  dedicate it and focus on the lowest cortile (sic) of

         25  schools in the system.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            65

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. Thank

          3  you very much.

          4                 Thank you, Madame Chair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I am just going

          6  to have to institute -- I saw Herb Berman walk in a

          7  few minutes ago, again. I just want to say to my

          8  colleagues, you know, no disrespect, but if there is

          9  personal kinds of district problems in your

         10  district, you have to make your own appointment with

         11  the Chancellor.

         12                 Herb Berman and I had to make this

         13  appointment to talk about fiscal matters, and I am

         14  not being disrespectful, I am going to simply say

         15  that we are going to get all of these answers in

         16  order to be able to go into negotiating the budget,

         17  we have to get them answered in this kind of forum.

         18  So, I know he will set up an appointment with you if

         19  you have personal kinds of situations.

         20                 Council Member Fiala, and I am going

         21  to ask you and I am going to hold you to that.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I thank both of

         23  you. This has to do with the budget and it is an

         24  issue that was not spoken about, one that I have

         25  spoken about. Unit of appropriation 338, pupil
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          2  transportation. There is roughly a six and a half

          3  percent increase in your FY 2000 budget request, or

          4  I believe just close to $502 million, how do you

          5  arrive at these figures?

          6                 As you know, Chancellor, and Deputy

          7  Chancellor, I have authored a no-standees bill in

          8  the City Council, and I feel very strongly about

          9  that, and we need to achieve that.

         10                 I am quite concerned that this area

         11  of education, and I believe it is a component of

         12  education, is neglected. The regulations governing

         13  people transportation date back well before you, and

         14  I know that they emanate from state rules,

         15  specifically distance requirements, and that the

         16  City has a more liberal policy.

         17                 I still believe that policy is wholly

         18  inadequate for many parts of the City.

         19                 Yesterday I was blasted, thanks to

         20  the Board of Education, telling the newspapers and

         21  parents alike, that their kids are being knocked off

         22  of buses because Steve Fiala wants it so.

         23                 I am going to ask how you arrived at

         24  that, and I am going to ask that you go back to your

         25  office of pupil transportation and suggest that they
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          2  need to be more civil when parents call up.

          3                 Parents should not be told to learn

          4  how to read a letter from the Board of Ed, and the

          5  letter itself doesn't state specifically what that

          6  parent is inquiring into.

          7                 I don't mind being held accountable,

          8  but I am not responsible for the pupil

          9  transportation guidelines, they are as I said wholly

         10  inappropriate, I have authored a bill to change a

         11  component of it, I have come up with four mechanisms

         12  to pay for it. Nobody in this City seems interested

         13  in dealing with the issue, so I want to put it on

         14  the table today because it is a Citywide issue and

         15  it is a component of the budget.

         16                 I thank you for coming, Chancellor,

         17  but I would ask, how do we arrive at the $501

         18  million? And is it appropriate, is it an appropriate

         19  figure to handle the real demands?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The

         21  struggle that I think we have jointly faced on this

         22  question is, on the one hand, as you say, there are

         23  both regulatory limits on which kids can receive

         24  transportation and which kids may not. New York does

         25  have, the City does have a modestly more liberal
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          2  policy than the state, and we have struggled with

          3  this problem that we have in some instances, as I

          4  understand it, accommodated what we in some

          5  instances are courtesies, essentially older siblings

          6  and the like, which of course in some instances also

          7  produces a few more kids than seats on a bus.

          8                 As we have struggled, we are not able

          9  to obtain funding for those kids, if we are to have

         10  no standees we are caught between inability to get

         11  additional funding to seat them, because they don't

         12  meet the formal requirements.

         13                 Or on the other hand, we have wanted

         14  not to have standees, and we share your concern

         15  about that.

         16                 As a result of that, there has been

         17  some tightening on this question of ensuring only

         18  kids who meet the formal requirement. Even if they

         19  may be a sibling, we have had to exclude some kids

         20  in order to find a way out of this point we are

         21  caught in.

         22                 The question of how the additional

         23  funding is calculated is one that I would have to

         24  get back to you in more detail, it is a lengthy and

         25  detailed process, but I apologize if you in the
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          2  process have somehow been caught in this as well.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: I thank you for

          4  the apology. The apology that I would like to see

          5  is, I offer again my hand again to sit down with

          6  your office. I would like your endorsement of this

          7  plan, and I would like you to commit either an

          8  increase in the base funding, the line item funding

          9  for pupil transportation, a sense that there is a

         10  commitment for it.

         11                 But if I could, Chancellor, I offer

         12  you three other proposals, and this isn't going to

         13  cost the taxpayers a dime, and currently we are not

         14  utilizing some of these proposals.

         15                 Billboards on the side of school

         16  buses have been talked about for years. There was to

         17  be a pilot program under your predecessor.

         18                 CHANCELLOR CREW: We are doing it now.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Where does the

         20  money go? Does it go into the general fund?

         21                 See, what I would like to see happen

         22  is increase the funding for school buses, create a

         23  revenue from that. It is created on the school bus,

         24  it should be put back into pupil transportation, and

         25  pupil transportation alone. I think that would be an
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          2  immense asset to increasing that baseline funding.

          3                 The State of Minnesota collected last

          4  year I believe $22 million from these billboards on

          5  the sides of school buses. That is my preference.

          6                 The other is to work with the State

          7  legislature to dedicate a portion of the New York

          8  State lottery system.

          9                 Here again the state is wholly

         10  negligent, they use the money to supplement, not

         11  necessarily add on, they use it to fill the gap. So

         12  they are wrong there. We should work together on

         13  that.

         14                 And the third, and this is my least

         15  favorite, but it has been spent by everybody and

         16  their brother, so let me throw it in, it is to

         17  dedicate a very tiny portion of the roughly $6.4

         18  billion from the tobacco settlement money.

         19                 I offer you my invitation to sit

         20  down, work with the Board of Ed to pass this no

         21  standees bill, to make stricter requirements on

         22  these school buses so that we can stop sending a

         23  very inconsistent message to our kids.

         24                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Mr. Fiala, let me,

         25  first of all, thank you very much for your thought
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          2  on this issue, and take you up on the need for a

          3  meeting. Because I think that from among the list of

          4  potential possible options as a way of being able to

          5  address this issue, there may well be some room for

          6  us to actually strike an accord that would make both

          7  financial and ultimately programmatic sense, and I

          8  certainly will be in touch with your office in an

          9  effort to do that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: One final

         11  question. Do you have any further recommendations on

         12  school governance reforms? I mean, in the interest

         13  of disclosure, I think everybody knows that I am an

         14  advocate for breaking up the Board Ed. I don't

         15  support the Speaker or the Mayor's proposal for a

         16  Commissioner with the advice and consent of the

         17  Council, but I do support borough boards as advanced

         18  by Senator Marchi, where we would have borough

         19  control.

         20                 Working with the current system,

         21  because that is what we have to do, are there any

         22  new initiatives that we should be advancing at the

         23  state level?

         24                 I will give you one example. These

         25  leadership teams, we had a hearing a few months ago
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          2  and the chair and I, I think we agree, that there is

          3  some overlap with the community school boards. Are

          4  the community school boards now irrelevant, and as

          5  we bring on these school leadership teams, do we

          6  need to think about reforming community school

          7  boards? Do we need them at all? Is it a waste of

          8  money to have both? Is it going to be a conflict?

          9                 What recommendations do you have?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Is that the last

         11  question, Mr. Fiala?

         12                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Certainly in that

         13  area there is room for a tremendous discussion and

         14  debate as to the role that community school boards,

         15  vis-a-vis school leadership teams can and should

         16  play.

         17                 I don't particularly want to render a

         18  judgment at this point in time, but I can tell you

         19  that that is an area that I think demands for

         20  greater clarity and certainly perhaps through

         21  hearings and other things involving community school

         22  boards one might be able to provide that.

         23                 But I do think that there is an area

         24  that, at least for me, continues to be -- continues

         25  to loom as an item that was not I think explicitly
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          2  addressed through governance but needs to be in some

          3  way, shape or form, and it really has to do with

          4  this notion of the line and authority relationship

          5  from my office to superintendents and

          6  superintendents most importantly to principals.

          7                 Governance went very far in

          8  establishing the connectedness between the

          9  Chancellor's Office and the Superintendent and

         10  establishing a strong link of accountability

         11  therein. It was less explicit and more difficult and

         12  then left out some pieces as it related to the

         13  holding of principals accountable and to their

         14  superintendents, and I think did not intend to do

         15  that, and thus I think that would be an area where

         16  at the state level there is a need for continued

         17  discussion.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIALA: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 Ms. Cruz.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Chancellor Crew, seriously I am

         25  looking at Deputy Chancellor Spence and I bet you
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          2  know what I am going to ask.

          3                 For an inordinate amount of time I

          4  have been questioning guidance counselors, and in

          5  your presentation -- you are nodding -- in your

          6  presentation you say you are looking for additional

          7  funding for a host of programs and deservedly so,

          8  however, we talk about reduction in class size, and

          9  we look at, and it is a report that bothered me and

         10  continues to bother me with the increase of violence

         11  in elementary school, I want to see or know where we

         12  are putting funding for supportive services for

         13  guidance counselors to be mandated in each and

         14  every, not on a part-time basis, on a full-time

         15  basis for our elementary schools. I think that is

         16  crucial.

         17                 And I have another question, but I

         18  will wait for you to address that.

         19                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I fully support this

         20  notion, and let me tell you why. The issue of

         21  academic achievement, which is obviously the

         22  centerpiece of our work, can't really be

         23  accomplished in full unless and until there are

         24  appropriate supports, such as guidance services that

         25  students have in an effort to actually achieve
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          2  higher levels of academic work.

          3                 I think that there are two elements

          4  of it that I would like to speak to in terms of the

          5  specific levels of support, and one of them refers

          6  directly to this question of expanding the platform.

          7                 It isn't so much just the need for

          8  guidance, it is the need for the attention that

          9  guidance services can provide in times and in a

         10  framework that is in many cases outside the school

         11  day and outside the school year, that I am talking

         12  about, and the support that I would provide would be

         13  not only to increase the number but obviously to

         14  provide opportunities for them in the course of an

         15  expanded day or an expanded year, provide

         16  opportunities for intervention and a role of

         17  intervention that guidance personnel can and should

         18  play in every scholastic endeavor, whether or not it

         19  is related to student attendance, whether or not it

         20  is related to their appropriate programming and

         21  getting them connected to supports both in school

         22  and out of school, and most importantly,

         23  particularly as we raise graduation requirements and

         24  conform to the Regents' requirements, I am very

         25  interested in students being connected in network to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            76

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  a post secondary pursuit, be it post-secondary

          3  education, formally, or directly into the world or

          4  work.

          5                 I don't think that scaffolding is

          6  either strong enough, I don't think it is consistent

          7  enough, and in many cases it doesn't exist at all.

          8                 So, my report to you would only be

          9  (a) that I support this, but (b) I think we have to

         10  be very strategic and very thoughtful about how an

         11  increase in this area is in some way, shape or form

         12  melded into this whole question of time and the

         13  availability of people such as this in a variety of

         14  interventionist kinds of strategies. And to simply

         15  say that more will be better is to assume that in

         16  the absence of doing anything with them more, that

         17  we actually come up with a quality that is any

         18  different than what we have so far.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: I hope we agree

         20  that there are many facets that have to be worked on

         21  to make it effective, however, I disagree that we

         22  can't have while we are looking at the structure

         23  that needs to be implemented, that we cannot ensure

         24  that each school does have it as an interim to not

         25  having any, and many schools, again, Chancellor, we
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          2  have gone through this, there are schools in the

          3  City, elementary schools, that have no guidance

          4  counselors, and it is a very, very stressful

          5  situation to parents, all right?

          6                 I will look forward certainly to the

          7  fact that --

          8                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I would be more than

          9  happy to sit with you and actually go through this

         10  with you.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CRUZ: My last question

         12  is that I would like you to update the Committee on

         13  the status of year-round schooling.

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: We have, as

         15  you well know, made two efforts to obtain

         16  legislative approval for year-round schooling.

         17                 We have learned painfully from each

         18  of those experiences and are seeking now to focus

         19  our pilot efforts particularly on new schools.

         20                 The controversy increases when you

         21  ask existing staff and parents to change habits in a

         22  school that they are already established in. In

         23  order to try and, since apparently the hurdle has

         24  been too great in the last couple of tries, we want

         25  to reduce the hurdle to approval of this by the
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          2  legislature, and by focusing on new schools are

          3  hopeful that we could obtain stronger support from

          4  the legislature to just at least allow us to try it

          5  out, and allow parents, particularly parents whose

          6  children attend heavily, seriously overcrowded

          7  schools, to make a judgment as to whether

          8  overcrowding or to work with us to make a joint

          9  judgment as to whether year-round schools don't

         10  offer a better alternative than overcrowding.

         11                 All we are trying to do is get on the

         12  field a few examples so we can test that out and

         13  parents and teachers and staff and central

         14  administration, you, as a body of elected officials,

         15  the people of New York City, can take a look at

         16  these alternatives and say, is it better to be in a

         17  school that is 150 percent overcrowded, or is it

         18  better to run a year-round school with some of the

         19  inconveniences, but some of the also very

         20  considerable advantages and see what makes more

         21  sense.

         22                 So, we are focusing on new schools in

         23  the hopes that that reduces the hurdle, that we can

         24  strengthen the support of our partners and relieve

         25  some of the anxieties in the legislature and go at
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          2  this issue again in a continually more modest frame

          3  in the hopes that eventually we can get on the field

          4  and test out how this works.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Council Member

          6  Linares.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you.

          8                 Chancellor, welcome. It is still

          9  morning.

         10                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: It is my turn

         12  to ask a couple of questions. I, too, would like to

         13  go on record commending you on your stance on

         14  vouchers in the past week, and to simply indicate

         15  that this is not over. This is something that is

         16  sweeping the country, just like Charter schools are

         17  sweeping our country, but the danger with vouchers

         18  is that it is another way of expelling privatization

         19  of public education, and the legacy that this

         20  country has in providing public education for those

         21  who pursue the American dream cannot be allowed to

         22  be destroyed, and I believe very strongly, as you

         23  do, and those who defend public education, that

         24  through public education we can provide choices to

         25  parents, real choices. And you know, that is part of
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          2  the challenge that we have currently. We can provide

          3  competition and we can develop the leaders that this

          4  country desperately needs, so I stand with you and

          5  with all of those who feel that the best vehicle for

          6  us to repair our future generation and current

          7  generation is through the public school system.

          8                 But let's not be mistaken that the

          9  fact that we believe that and the conditions that we

         10  are facing and the challenges that we face, is not

         11  going to be used to the hilt to really try to

         12  dismantle what good we have of public education. And

         13  so I think we have to seriously consider fundamental

         14  reform within public education, and I think that is

         15  the task of all of us.

         16                 I just wanted to share that and then

         17  ask you, that perhaps you can comment on a few areas

         18  that I believe are critical for our City education

         19  system.

         20                 First, I wanted to ask what the

         21  standard is of the efforts for universal pre-K?

         22                 You know, I understand that the

         23  Governor has now pulled back, but there has been

         24  planning to approach this and I hope that we are

         25  still on track in terms of that.
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          2                 I wanted to ask you, I am going to

          3  ask you a few questions for you to remark on, for

          4  the sake of time. I also wanted to ask you about

          5  whether you have as a priority efforts to implement

          6  school-based health efforts, especially in the

          7  elementary school, given the health epidemics that

          8  we have, such as asthma and lead poisoning. This is

          9  something that goes such a long way in really

         10  helping our children.

         11                 And as you spoke of the extended day,

         12  but also the regular school day within our schools,

         13  you mentioned library, and I was just wondering how

         14  many, whether we have a survey or a sense of how

         15  many of our schools, especially elementary schools,

         16  which is so critical, have functioning libraries

         17  with librarians and have the technology that we need

         18  in those libraries so that when we talk about

         19  non-extended school days, we see that children have

         20  access to those libraries.

         21                 And the last thing that I wanted to

         22  mention is, school leadership teams, which having

         23  been in the eighties in the school board, you know,

         24  one of the things that I have to say is that there

         25  was little accountability with school boards, there
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          2  was little or no training for school boards, so it

          3  was easy for them to stray, but I am afraid that if

          4  we don't invest in those things in the work that

          5  needs to be done, not just with teachers, but also

          6  with parents, and other community leaders, that we

          7  are going to have, you multiply them by many,

          8  circumstances that will be out of control unless we

          9  invest now to make sure that the resources are there

         10  for those to be prepared to exert the leadership

         11  that we desperately need at every school.

         12                 CHANCELLOR CREW: You have put your

         13  hand on four items that I think are very, very

         14  important to all of us and are contemplated as a

         15  part of the work that we are doing to reform the

         16  system. So, let me try to take them up in the order

         17  in which you gave them.

         18                 The first relative to the universal

         19  pre-K, let me just sort of set the table and then

         20  Dr. Rizzo may want to add some things to this.

         21                 The theory that we are operating with

         22  in the school reform of New York City is the theory

         23  that essentially says the following. It says that

         24  the only game in town is performance, what really

         25  matters as to whether you keep your job or don't
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          2  keep your job has to do with performance, not

          3  whether I like you or anybody else likes you.

          4                 Secondly, the performance,

          5  particularly as it relates to the systems obligation

          6  to children, that performance is first and foremost

          7  a function of investing system dollars, including

          8  state dollars, in the universal pre-K initiative.

          9  And we did that last year to the tune of about

         10  14,000, if I am not mistaken, students, worked

         11  hand-in-hand with members of the community,

         12  community-based organizations, both establishing

         13  seats but also establishing really important

         14  thresholds, breaking a rather cutting edge material

         15  and collaborations with these organizations, some of

         16  which had never been borne before in the community,

         17  and as a result provided seats for, as I said about

         18  14,000 students.

         19                 Here is the issue. The issue is that

         20  the theory of front-end loading system, meaning that

         21  we are better able to stop problems before they

         22  become monumental and grow further and further and

         23  become more and more and more financially dependent

         24  in years that follow, that theory has been broken by

         25  the Governor's abdication of his dollar -- of the
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          2  dollars for the universal pre-K. And I am on record

          3  in any place I can go in saying that, you know, I

          4  don't even understand why.  I think it is a gross

          5  misjudgment at the very least, and at the very worst

          6  I think it is venal.

          7                 The issue of providing services for

          8  children and providing an education for them,

          9  comparable to what is provided for them in

         10  neighborhoods and communities in our surrounding

         11  suburban worlds, is an extraordinary and important

         12  contribution, and we have got to do it, everyone

         13  knows we have got to do it. I am hoping and

         14  depending upon the legislation to actually restore

         15  this funding so we can continue to do it. Every

         16  effort thus far has been continued in our own

         17  planning and in our own development of this so that

         18  we can have this on board for September to expand

         19  the number of seats from 14 to 28, to 28,000 seats,

         20  and I expect that with the guidance and wisdom of

         21  people who, like yourself and others on the Council

         22  and others in the legislature who will see that this

         23  just doesn't make any sense, I am hopeful that the

         24  dollars will be provided.

         25                 But right now we are simply operating
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          2  as though they will. I have pulled no punches about

          3  the fact that there is no other money to be able to

          4  drive this, this is an extraordinary opportunity for

          5  us to actually really link up with communities and

          6  resources outside of the school in a way that we

          7  have ever done before. I think it provided exactly

          8  the right impetus to do that, so I am hopeful that

          9  we will be able to be there. But we have not

         10  shortchanged our planning efforts at all in this

         11  regard.

         12                 School-based health, I will ask Dr.

         13  Rizzo, and then if you would also comment on the

         14  libraries, and I will ask Mr. Spence to speak to the

         15  issue of school leadership.

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Actually,

         17  recently I was in a couple of high schools looking

         18  at the school-based clinics there and they were

         19  extraordinary, and those clinics are in jeopardy,

         20  and I was asked if I would write a letter on behalf

         21  of the Chancellor to the legislature to continue the

         22  funding for those, let alone at the middle and the

         23  elementary school levels.

         24                 They are no longer a luxury, they are

         25  a necessity. As we look to make up for, sadly,
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          2  school systems are asked to make up for many of the

          3  services that are not provided in the community at

          4  large, and these are much like the universal pre-K

          5  collaborations, they are phenomenal because they are

          6  a win/win all around. The clinics are happy, parents

          7  are served, they keep after school hours, and we

          8  believe that absolutely they would be an integral

          9  part of an elementary and middle school program.

         10                 So, we have been working with other

         11  agencies, City agencies, to look to expand those

         12  possibilities and folks in our administration are

         13  working to do that, and it really is -- hopefully if

         14  your voices are added to this cry, then I think we

         15  will go a long way in providing those, so those

         16  would be a God send all around.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: The funding

         18  for those clinics are state primarily?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: A great deal

         20  of the funding does come from the State. The folks

         21  that approached me in visiting our high school said

         22  that that is in jeopardy. I am not familiar with all

         23  of the legal ramifications of that, and if actually

         24  given that to Fran Goldstein and the folks who work

         25  with her to find out exactly where the gap is and
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          2  why this funding is in jeopardy, I don't know if

          3  Harry understands why it is, but they are really

          4  quite upset about it.

          5                 Some of it has to do with Medicaid

          6  reimbursement and how that works and how smooth that

          7  works, so we do have folks, and this is just a visit

          8  of less than two weeks ago, so folks are just

          9  beginning to try to figure out what that is. So,

         10  your voices again added to this would be very, very

         11  helpful, and as we get more information about where

         12  it is that the block is for these funds, we will

         13  certainly make that available to you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: I would like

         15  to work with you on that.

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: That would

         17  be very helpful.

         18                 In terms of libraries, we do not,

         19  have not as yet conducted a survey to find out, the

         20  answer to your question, but we can certainly do

         21  that, and we would be happy to do that.

         22                 It is when I visit schools, one of

         23  the things that I ask to see on a regular basis is,

         24  we actually have to stop calling them libraries,

         25  they really are media centers, and one of the things
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          2  that Project Smart did, which was smart, was in each

          3  school that we impacted years one and two, we made

          4  sure that not only were computers and other

          5  technology in classrooms, but that the media centers

          6  had at least four stations with Internet capacity

          7  and so on and so forth.

          8                 And I will tell you, having visited

          9  schools, they are there, where we promised they

         10  would be they are there. They are not in every

         11  single one of our schools, and when we look at

         12  scarce resources we have to make decisions about

         13  where do we go first. And quite frankly, our high

         14  schools are the most in need at this stage of the

         15  game because it is those youngsters who are

         16  competing, they are immediately with other

         17  youngsters who have computers at home, let alone in

         18  our schools.

         19                 Getting back to the media centers in

         20  all of our schools, schools are incredibly

         21  resourceful in converting classrooms into libraries

         22  and God bless them, but that is not the way it

         23  should be.

         24                 Particularly now that we have made it

         25  a standard that every youngster read a minimum of 25
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          2  books every year and they are very proud to show me

          3  their bulletin boards when I go into schools to show

          4  how they are tracking youngsters doing that.

          5                 So, beyond a central place in the

          6  school that would be a media center that needs to

          7  house current collections of books, we are also

          8  promoting classroom collections. We used to call

          9  those classroom libraries but we have been

         10  instructed that that is not the right vernacular, so

         11  these are called classrooms collections, so that

         12  youngsters can have readily available to them an

         13  array of books so that they can meet this 25-book

         14  requirement.

         15                 But I was just asking Patricia, as

         16  you were asking the question, do we constantly have

         17  information, that we do not but we would be happy to

         18  canvas the system and find out where those gaps are.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Good.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR RIZZO: Thank you.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Very

         22  quickly, I just want to add on the library issue

         23  that Project Connect, which is currently wiring the

         24  entire school system connecting all 1,100 schools

         25  for both instructional and administrative purposes
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          2  is going to complete the process of providing

          3  Internet access for every school library in the City

          4  and that process will be done before the end of this

          5  year.

          6                 So those media centers that didn't

          7  reach, weren't reached under smart schools will be

          8  reached under Project Connect and every media center

          9  in the City will be connected to the Internet by

         10  before the end of this school year -- excuse me,

         11  before the end of this calendar year.

         12                 The school leadership teams, we share

         13  the belief that absolutely it is what we heard again

         14  and again and again in the 41 different half day

         15  conferences that we held across the City, that the

         16  training and support is essential to make these

         17  work, that it really requires facilitation training

         18  and dollar support if it is to work.

         19                 And we just completed the process of

         20  putting out an RFP for training and support for

         21  school leadership teams around the City. That RFP

         22  will provide every district with a listing of

         23  qualified providers who bring the skill and capacity

         24  to assist the district. At the same time we believe

         25  parent training needs to be on a Citywide basis as
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          2  well, and there is $3 million that we will be using

          3  for Citywide training for school leadership team

          4  participation by parents, and that will be starting

          5  up certainly by the end of this school year, and as

          6  we go into next year, once the school leadership

          7  teams are completed and in place this year, we will

          8  start that training in the fall, if not earlier, so

          9  there will be comprehensive Citywide training for

         10  parents. We see that as an annual ongoing

         11  obligation.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Talking about

         13  parents I will conclude by just saying, Chancellor,

         14  you probably received a letter from the White House

         15  Initiative on Education for Hispanic Americans and I

         16  am vice chair of that Commission and we are holding

         17  five conferences throughout the country. Last

         18  weekend, two weekends ago we held the Los Angeles

         19  conference, which was very successful in its (In

         20  Spanish) The Role of Parents in the Education of

         21  their Children. The New York conference is scheduled

         22  for the first week in June, approaching, and I am

         23  going to follow-up and meet with you because I would

         24  like very much for you to be one of the partners

         25  along with others in making this conference a
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          2  success. Chicago follows and Miami and then we will

          3  pool all of the regions together, and this is

          4  something that the President has urged us to

          5  follow-up with and New York should be a flagship on

          6  that.

          7                 CHANCELLOR CREW: We will be very

          8  supportive of it.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

         10  Koslowitz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Thank you.

         12                 Good morning, Chancellor.

         13                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Good morning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: I, too,

         15  would like to commend you on your stand with Charter

         16  schools. I feel that whatever money is available

         17  should be put into our public education before we

         18  look at anything else. That to me is very important.

         19  Vouchers.

         20                 I would like to know where we stand

         21  with the coal-burners, the 124 conversion projects?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: There are

         23  76 of them that will be completed by the end of the

         24  Year 2000, in addition to those that are already

         25  underway. The remaining, that we are down to only 92
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          2  that will be funded in the next five-year plan, so

          3  it would be over 300 that were in place when I

          4  started here three and a half years ago, two-thirds

          5  are basically in process of -- we are in the process

          6  of getting rid of, of the last a little under a

          7  third will be done under the next five-year plan,

          8  and through that process get done I hope very

          9  quickly, early in that five-year plan. This Council

         10  has made this a priority, we make it a priority and

         11  I think the entire City of New York wants to see us

         12  have no coal-fired furnaces very shortly and we are

         13  moving on that as fast as we can.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Where also

         15  do we stand with the status of books for our

         16  children? Are we up to date with all of that?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The work of

         18  this Council and the Mayor and significantly

         19  increasing funding for instructional materials I

         20  think is clearly having an impact. This is schools

         21  now are far better supplied with textbooks than they

         22  were again three years ago. This is I think being

         23  resolved.

         24                 I hear periodically once in awhile

         25  outstanding complaints. I was delighted to see that
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          2  the City Comptroller had done an audit -- no, the

          3  State Comptroller I guess did an audit, in District

          4  8 about a concern about whether in fact the books

          5  were going out and being used, and in fact it

          6  confirmed that they were going out and being used

          7  and being used well, so it was very confirmatory and

          8  encouraging that in fact this kind of one of the

          9  many deficits of multiple years of neglect of the

         10  school system was the lack of textbooks, that this

         11  is in process, very rapidly being corrected.

         12                 There are still deficiencies, but I

         13  think with a sustained commitment for a few more

         14  years, we will be very comfortable that this system

         15  is well supplied with textbooks.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: I mean,

         17  that is exactly what I mean. We have to put whatever

         18  monies, and more monies, into our schools to make

         19  sure that I know my grandchildren have the same

         20  education as my children and myself, and that is

         21  very important to me.

         22                 I have one more question. Deputy

         23  Spence stated that there was no determination of

         24  what projects won't get done if you don't get $11

         25  billion for your capital plan, but the Queens
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          2  Borough President has reported information that a

          3  large number of projects in Queens will not get done

          4  if your high risk and medium risk funds don't come

          5  through. Can you comment on that?

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: Well, there

          7  are two parts of this. I think certainly if the

          8  medium risk dollars don't come through, and

          9  particular the $2.4 billion that we have proposed to

         10  finance through the use of building aid, if that

         11  doesn't come through, and that does require

         12  legislative approval, the impact on all of this plan

         13  will be very harmful.

         14                 I think in particular the Queens

         15  Borough President is talking about one scenario that

         16  has been discussed at length, which is an attempt to

         17  try and look at the high risk money and see what

         18  wouldn't get done.

         19                 As I say, that scenario is not a

         20  formal part of the plan, the Board has not formally

         21  adopted it. I expect, frankly, that this debate over

         22  who gets hurt if the dollars don't come through will

         23  continue for some time as part of the debate if and

         24  when we have to face those questions.

         25                 I am just hoping that at this point
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          2  in time no formal decision has to be made on that

          3  because it doesn't make sense for us to be insisting

          4  in absolute detail what won't get done if dollars

          5  don't come through, more important let's all

          6  galvanize ourselves around what will get done if we

          7  get the money.

          8                 So, frankly, we have an annual review

          9  of the plan by the Board, a change in our process,

         10  an annual review of the plan, if dollars don't come

         11  through at each of those annual reviews, these

         12  issues will be seriously debated and obviously the

         13  usual questions about what is a fair allocation

         14  among boroughs would be struggled with and worked

         15  out in that process.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: Of course,

         17  I don't have to tell you that Queens is at this

         18  point in dire need of more schools and more seats.

         19                 I think Queens, when I saw the

         20  numbers I think Queens needs the most seats and also

         21  more schools, and if we want our children to learn,

         22  we have to give them a proper place to sit, and that

         23  is a priority, and I hope everybody takes that to

         24  heart.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The
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          2  Chancellor and others have certainly spoken again

          3  and again to the very severe crisis in Queens, we

          4  share our concern for that. And certainly, as

          5  dollars come in, I think all of us understand that

          6  future dollars -- for example, should the

          7  President's plan for federal allocations to school

          8  facilities go through, I think there is a firm

          9  commitment across the board that additional dollars

         10  above and beyond the $11 billion get absolute --

         11  Queens gets much the highest priority of those

         12  dollars, no question.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOSLOWITZ: I just also

         14  want to make another comment, it would be very nice

         15  if the state released the monies that they owed us

         16  so that we can put this into our public system. You

         17  know, it just is mind-boggling that money is held

         18  back for our children. This is the future of our

         19  City and our country and it just boggles my mind to

         20  know this is going on.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I think I am

         24  next. The Chair is not here but she has instructed

         25  me to speak up in her absence. My name is Archie
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          2  Spigner.

          3                 Chancellor Crew, the major factor I

          4  believe in whether a person or a family moves in or

          5  out of a community or a city is the reputation of

          6  its schools.

          7                 Right now I don't know if New York

          8  City can wave our educational accomplishments as one

          9  of our major attractions. I am not saying it in

         10  criticism, I am stating a fact. It is as far as in

         11  that connection that you and I, the Council and the

         12  Mayor say we all have to work together on that

         13  problem.

         14                 I was listening on the radio this

         15  morning and I read that you were going to do a

         16  recruiting drive for new teachers based on using

         17  MetroCards or something like that, some recruiting

         18  technique, so it is in that connection that I want

         19  to focus on math and science teachers. Do you have

         20  more difficulty in getting a math or science teacher

         21  than you would a social studies teacher? I assume I

         22  know the answer.

         23                 CHANCELLOR CREW: The answer is yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: If the answer

         25  is yes, is a social science teacher paid the same as
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          2  a math teacher?

          3                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Are you asking me

          4  whether or not their entry, assuming all things are

          5  equal?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes.

          7                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So a math or

          9  a science teacher receives the same entry. Are there

         10  any incentives at any level further into this

         11  person's career that would encourage one to pursue a

         12  math and science teaching position?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: One of the

         14  things in the last year and a half we have worked

         15  out with CUNY, as part of a joint effort by the

         16  Chancellor and the Commissioner to improve teacher

         17  recruitment is a joint effort to identify a set of

         18  CUNY students who will receive scholarship

         19  assistance from the Board, these are math and

         20  science students, to become math and science

         21  teachers within the system, we will provide them

         22  scholarship assistance, internships in the school

         23  system and in addition they make then in return,

         24  they make a retention commitment that they will stay

         25  for a period of time in the school system. This is
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          2  one of a number of ways in which we are trying to

          3  address the shortage of math and science teachers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, I

          5  support that and encourage you in that connection.

          6                 As it relates to salaries in general,

          7  I am always hearing that Nassau County pays $500,000

          8  a year, or this one pays a million and a half or,

          9  you know, all of our principals are running to

         10  Scarsdale, you know, is this factual, or is this

         11  just the propaganda being put out by those who -- I

         12  didn't say the UFT or the CSA, I didn't say that.

         13                 CHANCELLOR CREW: No, I think it is

         14  accurate. I think it is absolutely accurate. We are

         15  surrounded by communities that receive more, or they

         16  receive more state aid basically --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: They receive

         18  more state aid?

         19                 CHANCELLOR CREW: They receive more

         20  per capita than New York City does. That is why I

         21  keep railing about this state aid that is due the

         22  children of the City of New York. We are surrounded

         23  by communities that are high wealth and low need,

         24  and those low-need, high-wealth districts ultimately

         25  receive, as a function or as a percentage of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  state coffers they receive more money per child than

          3  we do, thus they can pay higher salaries than we

          4  can, and as a result they track, cherry pick, come

          5  in, recruit from New York City some of the best and

          6  most talented people at the teaching levels and the

          7  administrative rank that they possibly can, and they

          8  don't have to do very much other than to wave

          9  anything from a ten to as much as 20, 25 percent

         10  more on an annual basis.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So, given

         12  that reality, what strategy, other than more money,

         13  you know, there are limits to that? I know there are

         14  police officers, I will use the same example of a

         15  police officer in Nassau County making a million

         16  dollars more than they make here; are you trying to

         17  address that in any other way, short of more money,

         18  given the limitations?

         19                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes. Yes. We have

         20  gone to other countries in some instances, recruited

         21  teachers who are unique in their particular

         22  discipline and therefore have an interest in both

         23  teaching but also have an interest in coming to

         24  specifically New York City to do so.

         25                 As Mr. Spence pointed out, we are
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          2  really trying to sort of grow our own through the

          3  college system in preparing students who are

          4  would-be, could-be teachers and providing some

          5  incentive for them to do that.

          6                 I think we ought to really start

          7  looking at some other incentive kinds of packages

          8  that are specific to high need schools within New

          9  York City, in other words, providing some incentive

         10  for teachers to actually come in and remain in some

         11  of our lowest performing schools, when you look at

         12  what has really turned it around it has been the

         13  nature and the substance of professionals that are

         14  in those schools.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Is that

         16  restrictive by any union limitations or regulations?

         17                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I mean, I think it

         18  is fair to say this is not something that they are

         19  enamored of, and I certainly don't want to speak on

         20  their behalf, but I think that the overall idea of

         21  providing differentiated pay is something that we

         22  still have to work through.

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: I would say

         24  on this particular topic of low-performing schools,

         25  preliminary discussions with the union have been
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          2  actually very favorable. So, I think there is a

          3  shared commitment to doing something for

          4  low-performing schools which we are hoping will be

          5  fruitful in the very near future, very near future.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Because then

          7  their interest, as well as ours, to have a quality

          8  product at the end of the process and a system with

          9  a good reputation.

         10                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Let me just say,

         11  because I think this is going to be an important

         12  thing to at some point get out on the table, every

         13  institution, whether it be the New York City Board

         14  of Ed, and the work that we are doing as an

         15  administrative team, or the UFT or the Principals

         16  Union, or for that matter parents, every entity on

         17  the landscape of New York City public schools is

         18  going to be asked to reform its behavior, its

         19  policies, its practices, its ways of doing business.

         20                 And as it relates to the topic we are

         21  now talking about, compensation, I think we are

         22  going to have to really look completely outside the

         23  current box of compensation as a way of being able

         24  to both recruit and sustain good teachers in the

         25  City of New York.
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          2                 I think that is also true when it

          3  comes to our principals, that we are going to have

          4  to really --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Is that

          6  contract still --

          7                 CHANCELLOR CREW: It is still pending.

          8  And you know, I am where I am on it. But the fact of

          9  the matter is that we remain committed to providing

         10  unique and different ways in New York City, as a way

         11  of being able to honor the commitment to the

         12  professional expertise and the status that people

         13  both richly deserve and want, as they assume

         14  positions of leadership and as they assume positions

         15  within the teaching ranks of New York City. And that

         16  is what will ultimately help us to turn the corner

         17  in being more competitive as a system.

         18                 Pete, you saw, not too long ago, on

         19  the television parents lined up trying to go to a

         20  school that they wanted to get their youngsters

         21  into. Someone asked me not too long ago, why is

         22  that?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: In district

         24  29, I want you to know.

         25                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes. Yes, Mr.
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          2  Spigner, I realize that that had something to do

          3  with your district.

          4                 But I would suggest that the issue

          5  here is all of us, each of us in our own way, but

          6  clearly all of us collaboratively, are going to have

          7  to figure out ways by which to make every school

          8  that competitive. And I don't think that we are

          9  going to be able to avoid some of the most

         10  important, but I think ultimately, tension-filled

         11  discussions around things like differentiated pay,

         12  being able to attract people based upon anything

         13  from incentive bonuses to actually having classrooms

         14  at which science teachers do their best work, it

         15  becomes enormously difficult to attract someone to

         16  come to New York City, spend their dollars and so

         17  forth to come and live in the City and then find

         18  that the very passion that they bring to their

         19  profession is muted because they simply don't have a

         20  science lab or they have inadequate facilities or

         21  their school is not appropriately equipped

         22  technologically as a way of being able to do their

         23  work.

         24                 So, there are lots of things that we

         25  have got to hurdle. People who come here and teach,
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          2  people who are in the system now, as principals, et

          3  cetera, are here frankly out of pure commitment and

          4  passion to the children. We have got to upgrade

          5  their skills, and provide them with a facility in

          6  which they can do the very, very high level work

          7  that we are asking of them, and I believe it goes

          8  exactly to the heart of not just what we are doing

          9  as a system with programmatic redesign and that sort

         10  of thing, but it also means we are going to have to

         11  redesign ways in which we do business and that was

         12  why it prompted me to actually move in the direction

         13  of Charter schools, and most importantly it is

         14  exactly why we seek additional funding from the

         15  state.

         16                 As soon as I can compete with the

         17  salaries paid to the teachers in surrounding

         18  communities, then I will have leveled that playing

         19  field. As soon as I can do the same for my

         20  principals, then I will have leveled that playing

         21  field, and as soon as our kids get on a per capita

         22  share, the kind of infrastructure in their schools

         23  are similar to the schools that are provided in some

         24  of these other communities, then that playing field

         25  will be leveled. And then, then New York City in my
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          2  mind will be a very, very different place to educate

          3  your children, and in fact uphold what you said

          4  earlier in your opening comment, which is that that

          5  is what we want to say to the rest of the world,

          6  that you can come here, invest in businesses, buy

          7  your homes here and ultimately predictably put your

          8  child in a neighborhood school of high quality.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: I support you

         10  in that goal.

         11                 One quick final observation. Quickly,

         12  quickly. Is in reference to the books, you have

         13  books for all of our children, but I also am

         14  disturbed when I see little tots struggling in the

         15  morning, I don't see them on their way home, but

         16  have they got a pack on their back that is just

         17  horrendous. You know, maybe they have got to take

         18  them home every day otherwise they won't be there

         19  tomorrow, maybe we can find lockers or some kind of

         20  facilities, file that away for another discussion,

         21  but we have got to find some way, particularly at

         22  the early grades, elementary school and intermediate

         23  schools.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chancellor.

         25                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Keep up the

          3  good work.

          4                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Thank you, sir.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you,

          6  Madame Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

          8  Nelson.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Good morning,

         10  Chancellor Crew.

         11                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Good morning,

         12  Council Member.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I just would

         14  like to add something on to what my colleague Archie

         15  Spigner said, we are all the losers, the children

         16  and all of us in the City Council and the people of

         17  New York City if we don't have a fair and equitable

         18  contract for the CSA and of course higher pay for

         19  our teachers, because we are losing many of them

         20  every year, and it is very disconcerting to see

         21  that.

         22                 In the State's last legislative

         23  session, there were two changes made to the building

         24  aid formula, the first is an additional

         25  apportionment of ten percent, an increase in the
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          2  reimbursement rate, for projects approved after July

          3  1st, 1998. And the second is an indexing of the cost

          4  allowance to reflect the local wage, an adjustment

          5  that takes into account higher regional construction

          6  costs, so how much more does New York City expect to

          7  receive because of the changes, and when will the

          8  City begin to receive these additional funds?

          9                 MS. DONOHUE: You are right in saying

         10  that those two changes in law were extremely helpful

         11  to us. The impact of them will be felt very, very

         12  gradually because they only apply to new projects

         13  starting this fiscal year. But between the enormous

         14  growth we hope to have in our capital plan next

         15  year, as well as the impact of those two changes, we

         16  anticipate an additional $42 million in building aid

         17  over the amount we expect to receive in the current

         18  year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Have there

         20  been any further discussions with the State about

         21  revising the reimbursement formula for state

         22  building aid?

         23                 MS. DONOHUE: At this point no.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Does the State

         25  still owe the City prior building aid reimbursement?
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          2                 MS. DONOHUE: Yes, that is part of the

          3  700 plus million dollar prior year claim which we

          4  discussed at length this morning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Can you please

          6  discuss the Board's proposal to raise $2.4 billion

          7  via the capitalization of building aid from the

          8  State? And how realistic do you feel this plan is?

          9                 MS. DONOHUE: I believe it is

         10  extremely realistic, in terms of the financials. It

         11  is institutionally complicated, it will require

         12  action of the State Legislature, in order to enable

         13  some bonding entity to have the right under law to

         14  receive the building aid and bond it out.

         15                 We are well on our way to producing

         16  the savings plan that will backfill in our budget

         17  those dollars currently accommodated by the building

         18  aid which does support our expense budget.

         19                 But we think this is a thoughtful way

         20  to take the intent of the legislature, which was

         21  that building aid enhancement would in fact

         22  stimulate more construction and in fact put it to

         23  that use.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Council Member

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            111

          1  BOARD OF EDUCATION

          2  Malave-Dilan.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Thank

          4  you very much, Madame Chairperson.

          5                 Chancellor, in Fiscal Year 1998 the

          6  City Council permitted the rollover of $258 million,

          7  and we also got the information of how the funds are

          8  utilized. My question is, at this point in time,

          9  this fiscal year, do you anticipate that there will

         10  be the necessity for rollover again of these funds,

         11  and if so, is there any checks and balances that the

         12  Board of Education can put in place where you could

         13  properly utilize these funds within the current

         14  fiscal year that they are allotted?

         15                 MS. DONOHUE: The January Plan

         16  modification, which is pending before you, takes the

         17  full amount of surplus we have been able to

         18  recognize in our current year plan, which is $106

         19  million, and rolls it into the financial plan to use

         20  it for key projects such as the extension of Project

         21  Reed.

         22                 We are not -- we do not have as a

         23  goal the full utilization of every dime of current

         24  year dollars in the current year because we believe

         25  that multi-year planning makes for much better and
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          2  more important use of these dollars to really

          3  sustain high achievement. It is really that longer

          4  term picture that we are most focused on at this

          5  point.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay. My

          7  next question has to do with Reso A money. Many of

          8  my colleagues during the budget process put money in

          9  for computer labs in schools within their district,

         10  and in many cases we find out later on where the

         11  school, let's say for example has anticipated a

         12  plan, maybe 40 computers in the lab, but because

         13  School Construction may have to do the electrical

         14  work or build a wall or security measures, then you

         15  find out that instead of 38 computer, you may only

         16  get 15.

         17                 I understand that you recently, or

         18  the Board of Education recently took over that

         19  responsibility. Is this going to make sure that the

         20  students get more hardware and software? The change?

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR SPENCE: The change

         22  I think will help a couple of things to occur.

         23                 One is to ensure that as we work with

         24  you as members of the Council, and as we have worked

         25  with your staff, that the use of computers is
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          2  consistent with the instructional programs at

          3  schools so that there is much closer coordination,

          4  that it isn't just treated as a construction

          5  process, but also treated as an integral part of

          6  instruction and this ensures that coordination.

          7                 And in addition, one of the things

          8  that has been going on under both Project Smart

          9  schools and now Project Connect, I think the big

         10  cost that has impacted this in the past has been

         11  wiring. Wiring has ended up steeling money in a

         12  sense from what one would have hoped would be

         13  hardware because the wiring wasn't there. Middle

         14  schools will be all wired by this August, Project

         15  Connect will increase the wiring around the system,

         16  and we are putting separate funding aside for

         17  building wiring, so in the future dollars committed

         18  to computers stays for computers and we fund the

         19  wiring out of other sources.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay, I

         21  just have one more comment, and that is regarding

         22  your five-year plan.

         23                 I know that for Brooklyn there is no

         24  new construction --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: School
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          2  Construction is here, they are coming up next.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: I

          4  understand, but I still wanted to make this point

          5  because it is his five-year plan.

          6                 For example, in many districts in

          7  Brooklyn there is overcrowding in certain portions

          8  of the district, and with the anticipated new

          9  housing that is going to be coming in, you know, I

         10  think that is an area that you need to look at.

         11                 For example, in one of the districts

         12  within my district, District 19, on the north side

         13  of that district it is severe overcrowding, even

         14  though we are getting a new school there, PS 7 and

         15  with the anticipated new housing, there is still

         16  going to be a problem with overcrowding and there is

         17  a dire need in that area and I really hope that you

         18  look at that.

         19                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Thank

         21  you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: I just wanted to

         23  indicate on the end, and I am not going personal,

         24  that we share that district and I have a proposal

         25  in, and if it is not adhered to in zoning, then I am
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          2  going to -- somebody is going to have a problem

          3  getting a new school.

          4                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: The final person,

          6  Council Member Pinkett.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 Chancellor, it is very nice to see

         10  you here.

         11                 CHANCELLOR CREW: It is nice seeing

         12  you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: We have

         14  missed you for awhile, so it is good to know you

         15  haven't forsaken us.

         16                 CHANCELLOR CREW: No, not at all.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay.

         18                 I must say in preference to what you

         19  said beforehand, and this is not a sword in the rock

         20  or anything of the sort, I understand what you

         21  stated about rethinking priorities and all of the

         22  other things in terms of having the schools that we

         23  need, but may I suggest to you, that the new

         24  thinking has to be on both sides.

         25                 No one who cannot afford to work for
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          2  the City of New York and live in the City of New

          3  York can afford the new thinking. And I think that

          4  if we don't value education in the sense that we

          5  value the people who provide the education and

          6  indicate our respect for them at the salaries we pay

          7  to them, then it is going to be very, very difficult

          8  for them to deliver the kind of services that we

          9  want and provide the inspired instruction.

         10                 I agree that you need inspired

         11  teachers, but a system that isn't willing to pay

         12  teachers properly, cannot expect too much

         13  inspiration, because we are perfectly prepared, if

         14  someone said that we want to do something on Wall

         15  Street, we will find the money. Even if it is to

         16  build a raceway, we will find the money. And I do

         17  recall that in terms of math and science teachers,

         18  and I think if I may be so bold, Burt Sachs can

         19  recall, when there was a Chancellor whose name was I

         20  believe Golden, and he started a program where

         21  teachers in school had training and they went to

         22  both Columbia, Brooklyn College, they went to

         23  various schools to receive training in math and

         24  science so that they can come back and teach math

         25  and science in our schools.
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          2                 I reject the fact that we have to go

          3  to Europe or anyplace else, all over the world, to

          4  recruit teachers because we won't pay the teachers

          5  in our own country a decent salary.

          6                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Ma'am, when I have

          7  full control over budget and I have the opportunity

          8  to determine my own --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Excuse me. I

         10  understand that you don't control the budget.

         11                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Okay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay?

         13                 But I still say that we as citizens

         14  have a right to say that I don't think anyone from

         15  any other country has to take priority over the

         16  people who live in this country who can teach,

         17  should teach and ought to be in our system at a

         18  living wage, and that would include the principals

         19  too. That would include the principals as well.

         20                 So, now may I go on and ask you my

         21  question?

         22                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Please.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay.

         24                 I am concerned because in schools,

         25  once upon a time with all of the terrible programs
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          2  that you went through, and when I say terrible

          3  things you went through, the necessary education,

          4  with the algebra, with the geometry, you had the joy

          5  of what, art, music, and sports, that made schools

          6  good, gave you something to enjoy. Where is sports

          7  in school? Where is the track in school? Where are

          8  those things that used to be the glue? No one funds

          9  those, no one is concerned about that in any of the

         10  schools. And so you have taken out all of the

         11  pleasure and you have left only the pain.

         12                 And I am concerned also about the

         13  Project Arts. Are you still funding that so that --

         14  at the same level, so that young people will get

         15  tickets to go to theaters, to go to museums, as they

         16  did before?

         17                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Actually the funding

         18  has increased.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: So that if I

         20  have students let's say in Prospect Heights, that

         21  program still exists so that they could have theater

         22  tickets, they could take their youngsters to the

         23  museum, they could take them to a Broadway play,

         24  they could take them and expose them to the culture

         25  of a City of New York and this would be their only
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          2  opportunity?

          3                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes, I believe that

          4  you can --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: You believe

          6  this?

          7                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Yes, I do.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay. I have

          9  heard differently, that is why I am asking.

         10                 CHANCELLOR CREW: I can't tell you

         11  whether or not every school in the example you gave

         12  has decided to use their money specifically for the

         13  purpose of being able to provide tickets for

         14  youngsters to go to museums and the like. But I can

         15  tell you that the dollars that have been placed in

         16  this effort have been multi-year in nature, they

         17  have ranged from $25 million to $50 million per

         18  year. The Mayor's commitment in this has been

         19  extremely strong, and our resolve is to actually

         20  restore on a permanent basis the arts in some form,

         21  dependent totally upon what the school has desired,

         22  but to restore them to their full and in many cases

         23  even beyond what they once were.

         24                 So, that commitment remains there, it

         25  will continue. The envelope now includes almost 800
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          2  schools I believe, something like that, that

          3  actually have been the recipients of additional

          4  dollars for the purpose of restoration of the arts.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Well, may I

          6  ask the following; I would like to know where they

          7  are, what schools. I know that I pass BAM going home

          8  every day, I don't see the buses that I used to see

          9  with all the school children, I don't see those

         10  buses in the same number that I used to see them.

         11  Now, maybe they still attend and I just don't see

         12  the buses, maybe I am getting home too late, but I

         13  would like to know what programs, which museums, I

         14  would like to know the schools, and if you could

         15  give us some idea as to the amounts.

         16                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Sure, I will have

         17  someone call your office.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Okay? I would

         19  like to know about those.

         20                 I also would like to know what sports

         21  programs, because that is what saves a lot of kids.

         22  And with the cut in youth funds, which again is not

         23  your doing, but if we are going to save young

         24  people, we need programs such as this.

         25                 I think also a school should not be
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          2  able to decide whether or not a youngster should

          3  have art and music. I think that should be a part of

          4  the regular syllabus of every educational

          5  institution. I think that should be.

          6                 I think there used to be bands in

          7  school, music in schools, and children participated

          8  and learned instruments in school. They don't do

          9  that very often today. I think that should be

         10  provided. And I think when we put money in schools,

         11  I want them to learn languages that should be

         12  important, but I think the language of music and art

         13  is equally important, and math and music and all go

         14  together.

         15                 So, I would like to have some

         16  response. I don't mean that you can give it to me

         17  now, but I would like to have that through the Chair

         18  so that she can share this with this Committee, but

         19  very, very, very, very soon because I am very sick

         20  of a society who thinks that the only way you can

         21  cure children is you put a police officer or someone

         22  trained by police in a school and that will create a

         23  better society.

         24                 CHANCELLOR CREW: We will be happy to

         25  provide you with the information.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Chancellor, thank

          4  you very much for your testimony.

          5                 Maybe, you know, since we instituted

          6  through your two deputies, that we need to convene

          7  informal before we really get down to the

          8  negotiating of the budget so that we will be on the

          9  same page.

         10                 CHANCELLOR CREW: Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON WOOTEN: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 11:45 a.m.)
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